Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

ECONOMY AND GROWTH SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA
Date:

Thursday, 7 February 2019

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

The Octagon Lounge - Pavilion Gardens, Buxton
30 January 2019

PART 1
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee

3.

Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure

4.

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5.

Statement of Community Involvement - adoption (Pages 7 - 78)

6.

Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (Pages 79 - 88)

7.

Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme (Pages 89 - 94)

8.

Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme - soft market testing (Pages 95 - 108)

9.

Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 109 - 110)

10.

Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of Economy and Growth Select Committee
Councillor A McKeown (Chair)
Councillor L Grooby (Vice-Chair)
Councillor R Atkins
Councillor G Claff
Councillor P Easter
Councillor S Flower
Councillor A Fox
Councillor S Helliwell
Councillor R Quinn
Councillor P N Roberts
Councillor K Sizeland
Councillor F Sloman

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
High Peak Borough Council
ECONOMY AND GROWTH SELECT COMMITTEE
Meeting:

Thursday, 22 November 2018 at 6.30 pm in The Octagon Lounge Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

Present:

Councillor L Grooby (Chair)
Councillors R Atkins, G Claff, S Flower, S Helliwell, P N Roberts,
K Sizeland, J Todd (substitute for R Quinn) and S Young (substitute for
P Easter)

In Attendance:

T Kemp (Executive Councillor for Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing)
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A McKeown,
P Easter, A Fox and R Quinn

19/22

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 4)
RESOLVED: That, subject to the addition of Councillor Todd to the list of
those in attendance, the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2018
be approved as a correct record.

19/23

DERBYSHIRE LOCAL ECONOMIC ASSESSMENT 2018
(Agenda Item 6)
A report informed and updated Councillors on the findings of the Derbyshire
Local Economic Assessment 2018. Discussion took place on manufacturing
as a key sector and the planned opening of the High Peak Business Park at
Chapel-en-le-Frith.
RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

19/24

FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND: DRAFT BUXTON VISITOR ECONOMY
STRATEGY & GLOSSOP CREATIVE INDUSTRIES ASSESSMENT
(Agenda Item 5)
As this was his last meeting Richard Tuffrey was thanked for all his hard
work over many years with the Council.
Consideration was given to the Future High Street policy paper published by
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government. The draft
report of the Buxton Visitor Economy Strategy , commissioned by a Steering
Group of key stakeholders in Buxton including the Borough Council was
also considered. Discussion took place on the Buxton Visitor Economy
Strategy and the Glossop Creative Industries assessment (previously
discussed and approved) forming the basis of an Expression of Interest in
the Future High Street Fund when launched in 2019.

Page 3

Economy and Growth Select Committee
Thursday, 22 November 2018

Issues raised included:
 The Heritage Lottery Fund request for a report covering Buxton.
 Supporting and passing views on to the Stakeholder Group.
 Wider impact of proposals, including tourism and major visitor
attractions.
 Working on an expression of interest for Buxton, Glossop and other
areas in High Peak, including the Central area.
 Lack of tourist accommodation available in Chapel-en-le-Frith.
 Lack of investment in Victoria and Market Hall in Glossop and the
public realm in Buxton.
 Accessing other funding streams, including the Gateway
Improvement Programme and other initiatives.
 Themes and transformative ideas included in the partnership
Strategy and using it as a supporting document to bid for High Street
funding.
 Consultation exercise with stakeholders, forums and those not
included.
 Improving branding and signage in Buxton, the Chapel-en-le-Frith
Neighbourhood Plan and buildings of significance.
 Linking rural areas and the Hope Valley to other areas, infrastructure
and history.
 Consultants needing to produce practical, imaginative and realistic
suggestions using resources available.
 Businesses identifying cultures and sub-cultures.
 Connecting analysis to the strategy.
Members were welcomed to subject any further additional comments after
the meeting.
RESOLVED:
1. That the contents of the report including the attached draft Buxton
Visitor Economy Strategy be noted and further comments invited.
2. That it be requested that the scope of the Buxton Visitor Economy
Strategy be extended to include an assessment of the potential
impact on, and opportunities for the wider High Peak and Derbyshire
economies.
3. That the Executive instruct officers to submit an Expression of
Interest to submit a High Peak wide bid to the Future High Streets
Fund which is expected to be announced early next year.

19/25

SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 7)
RESOLVED: That the Select Committee Work programme be noted and
suggestions welcomed.

Page 4

Economy and Growth Select Committee
Thursday, 22 November 2018

The meeting concluded at 7.32 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Economy and Growth Select Committee
7 February 2019

TITLE:

Statement of Community Involvement adoption

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Kemp - Executive Councillor for
Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing

CONTACT OFFICER:

Sarah Porru – Head of Regeneration

WARDS INVOLVED:

All wards outside Peak District National Park

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – Statement of Community Involvement – draft of document
consulted on.
Appendix B – Responses received to consultation with Officer
recommendation on any consequential changes required.
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To advise the Economy and Growth Select Committee of the results of
consultation on the Council’s updated Statement of Community Involvement.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Economy and Growth Select Committee notes the contents of the
report and makes any recommendations prior to the report going to the
Executive on 14th February 2019.

2.2

That the Committee recommends acceptance of the two late representations
received.

2.3

That the Committee recommends that the Executive approves the Statement
of Community Involvement - subject to the proposed modifications set out in
this report - such that a final version of the document can be considered for
adoption by full council on 20th February 2019.

3.

Executive Summary

Page 7

3.1

The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) is a statutory planning
document which describes how the Council will engage with residents,
businesses and other organisations in decision making on planning policy
documents and planning applications. Its scope is that part of the High Peak
that lies outside the Peak District National Park.

3.2

The Council's most recent Statement of Community Involvement was adopted
in May 2006. There have been a number of changes to the planning system
since this date. In addition, a number of new opportunities to engage with the
public (such as social media) have arisen. For these reasons it has been
considered appropriate to update the SCI, bringing it in line with current
legislation and public engagement methods.

3.3

A six week period of public consultation was undertaken on the updated draft
SCI, between 6th November and 19th December 2018. Twelve responses
were received. These responses are set out in Appendix two to this report,
with officer recommendation on any resultant modifications required. In
addition, two late responses were received – these are also set out in
Appendix two.

3.4

A summary of the responses received is provided from paragraph 6.7 of this
report. It is recommended that as a consequence of the public consultation,
the following amendments to the SCI are made before the document is
considered for adoption. In the table below, proposed additional text is shown
underlined and text proposed for deletion is shown as crossed through.
Response
ref.

SCI 4

SCI 4

SCI 4

SCI document
reference

Amendment proposed

Section 3:
Background;
page 8; table 1
(Preparation
process for
Development Plan
Documents); row 1;
column 1.
Section 3:
Background;
page 8; table 1
(Preparation
process for
Development Plan
Documents); row 1;
column 2, first bullet
point.
Section 3:
Background;
page 9; table 2
(Preparation

1: Involve and consult:
(Preparation (including
early engagement)

Reason for
recommending
change
To improve the
clarity of the
document.

Add additional sentence
at end of first sentence:
Any such consultations
are expected to be for a
minimum of six weeks.

To improve the
clarity of the
document.

1: Involve and consult:
(Preparation (including
early engagement)

To improve the
clarity of the
document.

Page 8

Response
ref.

SCI 4

SCI 8

SCI document
reference

Amendment proposed

process for
Suppementary
Planning
Documents); row 1;
column 1.
Section 3:
Background;
page 9; table 2
(Preparation
process for
Supplementary
Planning
Documents); row 1;
column 2, second
bullet point.
Section 4: How can
you get involved in
influencing the
content of planning
policy documents?;
page 23; table 3
(methods the
Council will use to
engage with the
community);
method: Availability
of documents in
alternative formats.

SCI 8

Section 6: Ensuring
equal opportunities
in consultation;
page 37, paragraph
6.15; final sentence.

SCI 8

Section 6: Ensuring
equal opportunities
in consultation;
page 37, paragraph
6.16; fourth bullet
point.

Reason for
recommending
change

Notify and consult with
relevant individulas and
organisations (required
by Regulations). Any
such consultations are
expected to be for a
minimum of six weeks.

To improve the
clarity of the
document.

The Council will produce
documents in alternative
formats on request; this
includes large print, and
audio, and in languages
other than English. The
Council will include
information about this
service in its
consultation
documentation and on
its website. The Council
will publish documents
in English only, unless it
can be demonstrated
that the integration and
cost benefit of doing so
is outweighed by any
disadvantage.
For example,
arrangements can be
made for copies of
documents to be made
available in large print or
audio. another language
on request.
The production of
planning policy
documents and any
related literature in
alternative formats on
request and languages
other than English; and

To reflect the 12th
March 2013
Written
Ministerial
Statement
regarding the use
of translation
services.

Page 9

To reflect the 12th
March 2013
Written
Ministerial
Statement on the
use of translation
services.
To reflect the 12th
March 2013
Written
Ministerial
Statement on the
use of translation
services.

Response
ref.

SCI 12

SCI 12

SCI 12

4.

SCI document
reference

Amendment proposed

Section 3:
Background;
page 12; paragraph
3.34; first sentence.

Duty to Co-operate
requires neighbouring
authorities, including
County Councils and
other public bodies, to
engage constructively,
actively and on an ongoing basis on cross
boundary matters (such
as levels of housing,
employment, road links,
Green Belt, school place
planning provision,
Green Infrastructure,
and public health).
Section 3:
Add a new paragraph
Background;
following para 3.53:
page 17.
Derbyshire County
Council is responsible
for the delivery of key
strategic infrastructure.
The Council will consult
and collaborate with the
County Council in
setting any levy, and
work closely with the
authority in setting
priorities for how a levy
would be spent.
Section 7: Review; Further reviews of this
page 38; paragraph document will be
undertaken if the
7.1.
Council considers that
an update would be
beneficial. A review of
this document will be
completed every five
years, starting from the
date of its adoption, in
accordance with section
23 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004 (adoption of
local development
documents).

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

Page 10

Reason for
recommending
change
To improve the
clarity of the
document.

To improve the
clarity of the
document.

To reflect the
requirements of
Regulation 10A
(1)(b) of the
Town and
Country Planning
(Local Planning)
(England)
(Amendment)
Regulations
2017.

4.1

The Statement of Community Involvement is a key document in the context of
Local Plan preparation and the determination of planning applications. As
such it will help to deliver the Council’s corporate aims as follows:
Aim One: To help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents
to live and work – measured through good quality social housing provision and
improved health.
Aim Three: To support economic development and regeneration - measured
through sustainable towns and rural communities and increased economic
growth.
Aim Four: To protect and improve the environment – measured through high
recycling rates, quality parks and open spaces, and clean streets.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

There are two options:
Option 1 – Decline to recommend a Statement of Community Involvement for
adoption. Local planning authorities are required under Section 18 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) to produce a
Statement of Community Involvement. Not recommended.
Option 2 – Recommend any modifications to the updated Statement of
Community Involvement, consulted on November / December 2018, and the
document’s subsequent adoption by full Council.
The Statement of
Community Involvement (SCI) describes how the Council will seek to engage
with residents, businesses and other organisations in decision making on
planning policy documents and planning applications in the part of the High
Peak outside of the Peak District National Park. Recommended.

6.
6.1

Implications
Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No implications.

6.2

Workforce
No implications.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and
Equality Policies. The Statement of Community Involvement set outs an
approach designed to ensure that all sections of the public, including local
organisations and any "hard to reach" groups traditionally under-represented
in the planning process, have the opportunity to be involved.

Page 11

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are no financial considerations for the Council relating to the
recommendations of this report.

6.5

Legal
Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended)
requires local planning authorities to produce a Statement of Community
Involvement. As a planning authority, the Council may, at any time, make a
revision to a local development document. The involvement of the public in
preparing planning documents and the consideration of planning applications
must follow the approach set out in the Statement of Community Involvement.
At this stage, the Statement is in draft form that has been subject to a public
consultation exercise. The consultation responses received are set out in this
report, enabling a final version of the document to be presented for adoption
by full council.

6.6

Sustainability
The Statement of Community Involvement is a key document in the context of
Local Plan preparation and the determination of planning applications. As
such it will help to deliver the Council’s objectives in relation to sustainable
development.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
The SCI has been subject to a six week period of public consultation. This
report sets out the responses received to the consultation with
recommendations for consequential modifications to be made to the
document.

6.8

Risk Assessment
Risks have been addressed in the body of the report.

Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)
Web Links and
Background Papers
High Peak Local
Plan: Statement of
Community
Involvement 2019

Location

Contact details

Buxton Town Hall

Page 12

Sarah Porru
sarah.porru@highpeak.
gov.uk
Phone - 07976753169

7.

Detail

7.1

Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended)
requires local planning authorities to prepare a Statement of Community
Involvement. The document is required to explain how the authority will
engage local communities and other interested parties in producing their Local
Plan and in determining planning applications.

7.2

High Peak Borough Council’s SCI sets standards and methods that will be
followed for engaging residents, local groups, stakeholders and statutory
consultees in:
 The preparation of the plans and policies that set out what the borough
requires and how it will change over a 15 to 20 year period; and
 The determination of planning applications for new development.

7.3

The Council's most recent Statement of Community Involvement was adopted
in May 2006. Since this date, there have been a number of changes to
national planning legislation and guidance that impact on the requirements for
community engagement including:
 Equalities Act 2010
 Localism Act 2011
 Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
 Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) (Amendment)
 Regulations 2017
 Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017
 National Planning Policy Framework and guidance

7.4

The existing High Peak SCI thus requires updating to bring it into line with the
current legislative framework. In addition, updating the SCI provides an
opportunity to review the contribution that can be made by newer methods of
communication used by the Council such as Twitter and Facebook.

7.5

At the meeting of the Executive on 11th October 2018, a draft updated SCI was
approved for a six week period of public consultation between 6th November
and 19th December 2018. Letters and e-mails were sent to interested parties
with notification of the consultation. The SCI was available to view or
download from the Council’s web-site and hard copies were placed in Borough
libraries and Council offices. The consultation was promoted via the Council’s
web-site, Facebook page and Twitter account, and a press release was
issued.

7.6

Twelve responses were received to the consultation from nine contributors.
Details of these responses and associated officer comment are set out in
Appendix two to this report. The officer comments include a recommendation
as to whether a response requires modification to the SCI or not. Details of
two late responses – received after the consultation period had closed – are
also provided in the Appendix.

7.7

The statutory bodies Network Rail, Environment Agency, Equality and Human
Rights Commission, and Historic England supported engagement and

Page 13

confirmed contact details (references SCI 1 – 4). In addition Historic England
(SCI 4) recommended setting out timescales for initial consultation.
7.8

Two objections were received in relation to the Council’s approach to
neighbour notification of planning applications (SCI 5 and SCI 9). Objectors
suggested that all residents living nearby development proposals (including
those living on access routes) should be written to, not just immediate
neighbours.

7.9

Four objections were received that referred to public engagement over the
Council’s Town Yard, Market Street application (SCI 6, SCI 9, SCI 10, SCI 11).
SCI 9 proposed wider consultation measures where an application would lead
to a reduction in car parking and / or displacement of vehicles onto
neighbouring roads. SCI 10 and 11 set out concerns over the Council’s presubmission public consultation and the lack of an appeal process for third
parties in the event of a local planning authority granting its own planning
permission.

7.10

SCI 7 objected to the procedures for Permission in Principle and proposed a
change to the SCI requiring the Council to carry out the same community
consultation for a Permission in Principle as for a planning application.

7.11

SCI 8 proposed that in place of offering translation of planning documents into
languages other than English on request, the Council should only translate
selected documents and where there is a substantive demand.

7.12

Derbyshire County Council provided a detailed response from elected
members and officers (SCI 12). Councillor Atkins expressed concerns over
the build quality of some recent developments that had required the County
Council to spend money on remedying defects. County Officer comments
included identification of additional cross boundary issues over which the
Borough Council should liaise with the County; proposed inclusion of a
reference to the need for the Borough to continue to engage with the County
over a Community Infrastructure Levy charging schedule; and proposed
inclusion of the requirement to review the SCI every five years following the
date of its adoption.

7.13

The late representations were received from Disley Parish Council and an
individual. Disley Parish Council supports close working to help improve air
quality along the A6 corridor. The other representation refers to community
engagement over the application to develop Foxlow Farm, Harpur Hill. It is
suggested that the SCI includes a requirement for a developer’s leaflet to be
attached to a neighbour notification letter, and where a developer refuses to
provide one, this refusal be made clear in the committee report.

7.14

Following careful consideration of all points raised, it is recommended that ten
amendments are made to the SCI to provide clarification of certain matters.
These proposed amendments are set out in table at paragraph 3.4 of this
report.

Next steps

Page 14

7.15

Adoption of the SCI, as amended, will be considered by full Council at their
meeting on 20th February 2019.

7.16

An adoption statement will be published on the Council’s website to set out
when the SCI was adopted and where it can be viewed.

7.17

A consultation statement will also be published to set out the representations
received and the amendments made to the SCI.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

XI XII I
VIII IX X

II III IIII
V VI VII

statement of
community
involvement

Page 17

Page 18

Statement of Community Involvement

Contents
1 Foreword

2

2 About this Statement

3

3 Background

5

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of Planning Policy Documents?
19
5 How can you get involved in the Decision Making Process on Planning Applications?
30
6 Ensuring Equal Opportunities in Consultation

36

7 Review

38

8 Appendix A Glossary of Terms Used

39

9 Appendix B Sources of Information & Advice on Planning

42

Page 19
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

1 Foreword

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Consultation Draft November 2018
This Statement of Community Involvement supersedes the Council's previous document
which was adopted in May 2006.

For further information relating to this document, or for a large print, audio copy, or other
language version, please contact:
Regeneration Service
High Peak Borough Council
Town Hall
Buxton
Derbyshire
SK17 6EL
Telephone: 01298 28400
Email: ldf@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 20
2

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

2 About this Statement
What is the Statement of Community Involvement?
2.1
Planning has an impact on all residents’ lives, for example the location of the homes we
live in, the roads we travel on, where we shop, work and the open spaces we enjoy. These are
all as a result of planning decisions. Therefore there is a wide variety of individuals and
organisations that potentially have an interest in shaping future development in the High Peak.
2.2 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) describes how the Council will seek to
engage with residents, businesses and other organisations in decision making on planning policy
documents and planning applications in the part of the High Peak outside of the Peak District
National Park.
2.3 Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) requires local
planning authorities to produce a Statement of Community Involvement, which should explain how
they will engage local communities and other interested parties in producing their Local Plan and
determining planning applications.
2.4 There are minimum requirements for consultation on planning policy documents set out in
the Town and Country Planning Regulations which the Council must adhere to. However, the
Council has consistently exceeded these requirements when producing key planning documents
like the High Peak Local Plan and intends to continue this approach to further strengthen community
involvement in planning.
2.5 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) also provides guidance on engagement
and collaboration with residents, businesses and organisations in the production of planning
documents and in the preparation and determination of planning applications.
2.6 The aim of the approach set out in this document is to ensure that all sections of the public,
including local groups and organisations, and any "hard to reach" groups traditionally
under-represented in the planning process, have the opportunity to be involved. The intention is
to focus community involvement at the outset of the plan preparation process, ensuring that
residents and other interested parties have the opportunity to be involved at an early stage of the
production of each document.
2.7

With these aims in mind, the SCI objectives are as follows:
To inform members of the public and all other interested parties in a clear fashion how they
will be notified about our planning policy consultations and how they can give their views on
planning applications;
To ensure the process of making comments is as straightforward as possible both electronically
and on paper;
To plan consultation carefully to ensure that the opportunity is given for all interested parties
to participate in the process, whilst at the same time making the most effective use of Council
resources.

Page 21
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

3

Statement of Community Involvement

2 About this Statement
High Peak's communities
2.8 The High Peak is predominantly rural with the local planning authority area covering land
on the edge of the Peak District National Park, with residents living primarily in the main market
towns of Glossop, New Mils, Whaley Bridge, Chapel-en-le-Frith and Buxton. These characteristics
of the area have to be taken into account when undertaking consultation with residents about
planning documents.
2.9 The demographics of the Borough also require consideration. The 2011 Census shows that
the High Peak has an ageing population. In the decade between 2001 and 2011 the greatest
contraction in population was in the 25 to 40 age cohorts followed closely by the age cohorts under
15. In contrast, the highest growth was experienced in those aged 60 to 70 (there was also a
significant increase in the cohorts between 15 and 25). The numbers aged 90+ grew dramatically
also.
The High Peak SCI
2.10 The Council adopted its Local Plan in April 2016 and the document is subject to regular
review. With this in mind, High Peak has decided to update its SCI to reflect changes to the
planning system and new opportunities to engage with the public (such as social media) which
have arisen since the previous SCI was adopted in May 2006.
2.11 This updated SCI has been structured to provide a comprehensive guide to the Council’s
approach whilst at the same time enabling the community to focus on particular areas of interest.
The document is split into sections as follows:
Part 3 provides key background information about how the planning system works, the planning
policy documents produced by the Council and the preparation process for these documents.
The section also covers other considerations the Council must take into account when preparing
its planning policy documents, such as provisions made in the Localism Act 2011.
Part 4 details methods of engagement to be used during consultation and includes tables
setting out who will be consulted at each key stage in plan preparation. This section also
includes details as to what happens to comments received by the Council.
Part 5 covers consultation in the context of the planning applications process.
Part 6 focuses on how the Council will ensure equal opportunities in consultation by seeking
to involve all sections of the community in the process and measures to be used with the aim
of achieving this.
Part 7 details the circumstances under which this SCI will be reviewed.
2.12 This statement is intended as a reference point for members of our community to understand
how we can all become involved in planning matters. With this in mind, a glossary has been
produced to explain the terms used (Appendix A). Further sources of information and advice on
planning can be found in Appendix B.

Page 22
4

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
Who is the Community?
3.1 This document has been prepared having first established an understanding of the High
Peak community and its stake holders.
3.2

Our community comprises:
Statutory Consultees (for example utilities companies; public bodies such as Natural England,
Historic England, the Environment Agency; and our neighbouring local authorities).
General Consultation Bodies (voluntary bodies, those representing different racial, ethnic,
national and religious groups, local interest groups, those representing the interests of disabled
persons and local businesses – as the Local Planning Authority considers appropriate).
General Public.
Parish and Town Councils (including those who adjoin the High Peak).
Local businesses; business organisations such as the Local Enterprise Partnership and East
Midlands Chamber; planning agents; house builders; developers.
Communities or sections of population deemed to be "hard to reach", or who are not currently
fully engaged with the planning policy process. These may include people who experience
language difficulties, difficulties in accessing information, or may think that service-providers
do not care about them, or do not listen to them.

3.3 The Council has considered how its whole community (as described above) can best be
represented - at each stage in the preparation of planning policy documents, as well as in the
determination of planning applications.

How does the Planning System Work?
3.4
There are two key parts to the planning system - Planning Policy and Development
Management.
3.5 Planning Policy is concerned with producing the local planning documents and policies that
are used to guide development in the High Peak (outside the Peak District National Park). These
documents must conform to relevant Government guidance, and there are specific regulatory
procedures which must be followed during their preparation. Planning policy documents cover
matters such as where new housing and other types of development will take place and the issues
that should be taken into account when assessing a planning application.
3.6
Development Management is responsible for processing and determining planning
applications for development, and for other applications such as for advertisements or works to
listed buildings. Planning applications may be determined either by officers (under delegated
powers) or by the Council's Development Control Committee, depending on the scale and nature
of the proposal and comments received.

Page 23
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

5

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
3.7
Anyone is entitled to make comments on a planning policy document or a planning
application. It should be noted that policies within the Local Plan are used to determine planning
applications, so it is important that those with an interest in the development and future of their
local area have their say when policy documents are being prepared.
3.8 Please refer to Appendix B for a list of organisations that can provide further information
and advice on the planning system.

What Planning Policy Documents are prepared?
3.9
Figure 1 (below) illustrates the hierarchy of documents within the planning policy system,
some of which are prepared by the Council.

Figure 1 Hierarchy of planning documents
3.10 The High Peak Local Development Scheme (LDS) sets out the documents which the
Borough Council will use when exercising its planning functions. The LDS explains what each of
these documents are, what areas they cover and how they relate to each other. The Scheme also
sets out a timetable for the production of new documents over the next three years or so.
3.11 Planning Policy documents, including the LDS, can be accessed at the following web
address:
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/301/Planning-policy

Page 24
6

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
Development Plan Documents (DPDs)
3.12 These are the key documents which make up the Local Plan - they contain the local set
of planning policies. DPDs all undergo a statutory preparation process including independent
examination before they can be adopted by the Council. DPDs in High Peak are:
The High Peak Local Plan (adopted in April 2016)
Neighbourhood Plans
3.13 These are plans prepared by the local community (usually a Parish or Town Council) for
a specific area and form part of the development plan for that location. Adopted ("made")
Neighbourhood Plans in High Peak are:
Chapel-en-le-Frith Neighbourhood Development Plan (adopted in August 2015)
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)
3.14 These are a set of documents which provide additional, specific detail about a certain topic
or location. The documents do not require independent public examination and cannot make or
change policy. SPDs in High Peak are:
High Peak Design Guide (adopted in February 2018)
Glossop Design and Place Making Strategy (adopted in March 2012)
Buxton Design and Place Making Strategy (adopted in December 2009)
Buxton Station Road Design Framework (adopted in July 2007)
Housing needs in the High Peak (adopted in November 2007)
Landscape Character (adopted in March 2006)
Residential Design (adopted in December 2005)
Planning Obligations (adopted in December 2005)
3.15 Please note that the lists above are not exhaustive and new DPDs and SPDs may be
added. Please refer to the Borough Council’s website for the most up to date information.

What is the Preparation Process for Planning Policy Documents?
3.16 The Council aims to involve the community and other interested parties throughout the
preparation of its Development Plan Documents, particularly at the early stages of production.
This is intended to help achieve greater local ownership and legitimacy for the policies that will
shape future development in the Borough.

Page 25
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

7

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
3.17 The tables below show the current preparation process for DPDs and SPDs based on The
Town & Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 and guidance set out in
the NPPF. Please note that changes to the preparation process could be required by amendments
to the Regulations.
Preparation of Development Plan Documents
Stage
1: Involve:
Preparation
(including early
engagement)

Preparation activities
Normally would include two consultations: options and preferred
options, and in certain circumstances there may be a need for further
consultation prior to publication.
Gather evidence from a variety of sources.
Notify and consult with the local community, groups and organisations
about the content of the proposed plan (required by Regulations).
Consider issues and alternatives.
Consider comments made and alternative approaches.
Prepare initial Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulations
Assessment.
Prepare content of draft document.
Prepare part 1 of Consultation Statement (required by Regulations)
outlining who was consulted at this stage and how, a summary of the
main issues raised and how these have been taken into account.
Also demonstrate how requirements of SCI have been met at this
stage.

2: Invite comment:
Publication

Six week (minimum) formal period to comment on soundness of plan,
sustainability appraisal, Habitats Regulations Assessment and
supporting evidence.
Notify and invite representations from bodies required by Regulations.
Documents made available for inspection at Council offices and other
appropriate locations and published on the Council’s website.
Prepare part 2 of Consultation Statement (required by Regulations)
outlining who was consulted at this stage and how, the number of
representations made and a summary of the main issues raised and
how these have been taken into account. Also demonstrate how
requirements of SCI have been met at this stage.

Page 26
8

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
Stage
3: Inspection:
Submission for
Independent
Examination

Preparation activities
Development Plan Document submitted to Secretary of State for
independent examination.
Publicise examination.
Notify those involved of procedures for examination.
Independent examination.
Planning inspector issues report.

4: Adopt

Adopted by Council if considered to be ‘sound’ by inspector with
modifications if recommended.

5: Notify

Notify anyone who has requested to be kept informed about the
publication of the Inspector’s report and the adoption of the document.

6: Monitor

Final plan is regularly monitored, where possible, to make sure plan
is achieving its aims.
Plan may be reviewed, where necessary.

Table 1 Preparation Process for Development Plan Documents
Preparation of Supplementary Planning Documents
Stage

Preparation Activities

1: Involve:

Gather evidence from a variety of sources.

Preparation
(including
early
engagement)

Notify and consult with relevant individuals and organisations (required
by Regulations).
Consider issues and alternatives.
Consider need for an initial Sustainability Appraisal (this is not required
by Regulations but considered to be good practice where applicable).
Prepare content of draft document.

Page 27
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

9

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
Stage

Preparation Activities
Prepare Consultation Statement (required by Regulations) setting out who
was consulted when preparing SPD, a summary of the main issues raised
and how those issues have been addressed in the SPD.

2: Invite
comment:

Four week (minimum) formal period for anyone to comment on plan,
consultation statement, sustainability appraisal (where applicable) and
any supporting evidence.

Publication
Documents made available for inspection at Council offices and other
appropriate locations and published on the Council’s website.

3: Adopt

Document adopted by the Council.

4: Notify

Notify anyone who has requested to be kept informed about the adoption
of the document.

5: Monitor

Final document is regularly monitored, where possible, to make sure plan
is achieving its aims.
Document may be reviewed, where necessary.

Table 2 Preparation Process for Supplementary Planning Documents
3.18 The approach when preparing all planning policy documents will be one which focuses on
early involvement in the process with the most intensive consultation taking place at Stage 1, the
preparation stage, with the aim of maximising the involvement of individuals and organisations in
shaping the contents of the document. This approach reflects the 2012 Regulations and the
guidance in the NPPF.
3.19 Stage 2 is a formal representation stage seeking comments on whether the plan proposed
for submission for examination is sound (in the case of DPDs) or suitable for adoption (in the case
of SPDs).
Sustainability Appraisals (SAs)
3.20 It is a statutory requirement that the Council produces a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) in
order to assess the economic, environmental, and social effects of a plan from the outset of the
preparation process. This helps to inform policy and allows decisions to be made that accord with
sustainable development. The SA documents are also subject to consultation alongside the plan
and inform changes at each stage in the plan production process.

Page 28

10

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
3.21 At the beginning of the plan preparation process an SA Scoping Report will be produced,
setting out a baseline picture of the Borough, with reference to both sustainability objectives and
indicators. The report will identify the scope and level of detail of information to be included in the
main SA. For the scoping report the Council will consult only certain bodies and statutory
consultees, as required under the regulations, as well as various other organisations and
representative interests as deemed appropriate.
3.22 An initial SA is produced at Stage 1: "Involve". Full consultation on this document takes
place with a wider audience, alongside consultation on the DPD / SPD, as preparation of both is
intrinsically linked. The SA can also be amended to reflect comments received if appropriate.
3.23 A further SA report is produced at Stage 2: "Invite Comment" alongside the DPD / SPD.
Anyone is able to make comments on it and amendments can be made. In the case of preparing
a DPD, both the SA and the DPD (along with other related documents) are submitted to the
Secretary of State for independent examination. A final version of the SA will be published alongside
the adopted plan.
3.24 Understanding the specific environmental impacts of the DPD / SPD also needs to be
considered when creating a new plan. This can be achieved by incorporating a Strategic
Environmental Assessment (SEA) into the Sustainability Appraisal, as is required under the Strategic
Environmental Assessment Directive (2001/42/EC).
3.25 It should be noted that production of a Sustainability Appraisal for a Supplementary Planning
Document is not a statutory requirement. However, the Borough Council will review the need on
a case by case basis, as preparation of an SA is considered to be good practice and useful in
informing the production of the plan.
3.26 Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) is also required to be undertaken if the contents
of the plan are considered to be capable of affecting the designated interest features of European
nature conservation sites. Special Protection Areas are designated under the Birds Directive to
protect wild birds and their habitats. Special Areas of Conservation are designated under the
Habitats Directive to conserve habitats and species other than birds that are important in their own
right. The HRA will be made available as a supporting document to accompany the plan alongside
other evidence.

What else must the Council consider when preparing its Planning Policy
Documents?
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
3.27 The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government published the revised National
Planning Policy Framework in July 2018. This was the first revision of the National Planning Policy
Framework since 2012 when the Framework was originally published to consolidate previously
issued documents called Planning Policy Statements (PPS) and Planning Policy Guidance Notes
(PPG) for use in England.

Page 29
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

11

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
3.28 The revised National Planning Policy Framework is considered to be a vital tool to help
ensure that we get planning for the right homes built in the right places of the right quality, at the
same time as protecting our environment. Local planning authorities are required to follow the
guidance within it when creating new planning policy and determining planning applications in
their area.
Peak District Partnership
3.29 When preparing its Local Plan and supporting policy documents, the Council is required
to have regard to the Borough's Sustainable Community Strategy. Building on the High Peak and
Derbyshire Dales Sustainable Community Strategy 2009 - 2014, the Peak District Partnership
Statement of Priorities 2015 - 2019 provides the framework for co-ordinating partner actions to
improve the quality of life for those living and working in the area. Partners focus attention on two
shared priorities: improving the local economy, and the health and well-being of our communities.
3.30 As the Government has identified Local Plans as one of the key mechanisms for delivering
Community Strategy objectives, many of the outcomes of the Community Strategy will be linked
with aims and objectives of Local Plan documents.
3.31 The previous Community Strategy set out a long term vision for the Peak District. This
remains the vision for the area over the next five years:
3.32

The Peak District will be a distinctive, high quality rural environment with:
people of all ages who are healthy and safe;
high-wage, high-skill jobs;
affordable, decent homes for local people;
towns and villages that offer a high quality of life.

Localism Act 2011
3.33 The Localism Act introduced new elements into the planning process including a "duty to
co-operate" and neighbourhood planning.
Duty to Co-operate
3.34 Duty to Co-operate requires neighbouring local authorities, including County Councils and
other public bodies, to engage constructively, actively and on an on-going basis on cross boundary
matters (such as levels of housing, employment, road links). The relevant neighbouring Local
Authorities for High Peak are Derbyshire County Council, Peak District National Park Authority,
Derbyshire Dales District Council, Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council, Stockport Metropolitan
Borough Council, Manchester City Council, Cheshire East Council, Sheffield City Council,
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council, Barnsley Council
and Kirklees Metropolitan Borough Council.

Page 30
12

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
3.35 The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2014) recommended that due to the overlapping
nature of housing market areas, migration and commuting patterns, the Council should focus its
efforts for cooperation on housing matters with Stockport, Tameside, Cheshire East, Derbyshire
Dales and Sheffield.
3.36 The Employment Land Review (2014) indicated that cooperation on employment issues
would be particularly relevant with authorities including Manchester, Tameside and Stockport, due
to the extent of out-commuting from High Peak to these areas.
3.37 The "prescribed bodies" which the Council has a duty to co-operate with are set out in the
Town & Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 as amended by The
National Treatment Agency (Abolition) and the Health and Social Care Act 2012 (Consequential,
Transitional and Saving Provisions) Order 2013. In addition to Local Planning Authorities, those
relevant to High Peak Borough Council are:
Environment Agency
Historic England
Natural England
Civil Aviation Authority
Homes and Communities Agency
North Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group and Tameside and Glossop Clinical
Commissioning Group
National Health Service Commissioning Board
Office of Rail Regulation
Transport for Greater Manchester
Highways Agency and Derbyshire County Council Highways
3.38 Whilst Local Enterprise Partnerships and Local Nature Partnerships are not subject to the
Duty to Cooperate, local planning authorities should have regard to their activities.
3.39 (Please note that the above list is subject to change as new regulations are issued or bodies
change their name and / or function.)
3.40 Local Councils are required to demonstrate compliance with the duty to co-operate as part
of the examination of Local Plans. If a Council cannot adequately demonstrate that it has complied
with the duty, its Local Plan will fail the independent examination.

Page 31
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

13

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
Neighbourhood Planning
3.41 Neighbourhood planning gives communities direct power to develop a shared vision for
their neighbourhood and shape the development and growth of their local area. They are able to
choose where they want new homes, shops and offices to be built, have their say on what those
new buildings should look like and what infrastructure should be provided, and grant planning
permission for the new buildings they want to see go ahead.
3.42 Preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan enables communities to play a much stronger role
in shaping the areas in which they live and work and in supporting new development proposals.
This is because unlike the parish, village or town plans that communities may have prepared, a
Neighbourhood Plan forms part of the development plan and sits alongside the Local Plan prepared
by the local planning authority. Decisions on planning applications will be made using both the
Local Plan and the Neighbourhood Plan, and any other material considerations.
3.43 Preparation of a Neighbourhood Development Plan is subject to a series of statutory steps
set out in Regulations, and shown in Figure 2 below. The Local Planning Authority will organise
an independent examination of the Plan and a community referendum that is held at the end of
the process.
3.44 Neighbourhood Development Orders allow planning permission to be granted in relation
to a particular neighbourhood area for certain types of development. It allows communities to
permit the development they wish to see either in full or outline without the need for planning
applications. The planning permission can vary from a number of homes on a specified site to a
blanket consent, such as extensions to residential properties across the defined neighbourhood
area. Exclusions do apply such as minerals and waste development, types of development which
need Environmental Impact Assessment and nationally significant infrastructure projects. Again,
the process for creating a neighbourhood development order is statutory and very similar to the
process for creating a neighbourhood plan.
3.45 Community Right to Build Orders are made by a community organisation (set up as a body
which is established to further the social, economic and environmental well-being of individuals
living in a particular area) or the Parish / Town Council allowing them to bring forward a small
development for purposes such as new homes, businesses or community facilities. It is a site
specific application limited to the development site.
3.46 The consultation bodies for Neighbourhood Development Plans are set out in Schedule 1
of the The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) and comprise:
A Local Planning Authority, County Council or Parish Council any part of whose area is in or
adjoins the Local Planning Authority
Coal Authority
Homes and Communities Agency
Natural England
Environment Agency

Page 32
14

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
Historic England
Network Rail Infrastructure Ltd
Highways Agency
Marine Management Organisation
Those responsible for Electronic Communications within the Local Planning Authority Area
Primary Care Trust
Utility Providers (Gas, Electric, sewerage undertaker, water undertaker)
Voluntary bodies relating to any part of the neighbourhood area
Bodies representing the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups in any part of
the neighbourhood area
Bodies representing the interests of different religious groups in any part of the neighbourhood
area
Persons carrying on business in any part of the neighbourhood area
Bodies representing the interests of disabled persons in any part of the neighbourhood area
3.47 Please note that consultation bodies vary from the above for Neighbourhood Development
Orders and Community Right to Build Orders so current legislation should be referred to.

Other Planning Documents we will consult on
Neighbourhood Plans
3.48 Neighbourhood Plans are prepared by Town or Parish Councils, where these exist, or by
a neighbourhood forum, not by the Borough Council. Plan preparation has to follow a statutory
process including consultation with, and participation by, the public, independent examination and
the holding of a referendum.
3.49

Figure 2 below sets out the process for creating a Neighbourhood Plan.

Page 33
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

15

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background

Figure 2 Neighbourhood Plan preparation process

Page 34
16

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
3.50 There are a range of approaches the Council could take in order to fulfill its statutory duty
to support and advise during the neighbourhood planning process, with various levels of
involvement. If a Neighbourhood Plan is proposed in the High Peak, the level of support provided
will be considered on a case by case basis, depending on the resources available to the Council
at that time.
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule
3.51 CIL is a standardised, non-negotiable local levy that is placed on new development for the
purpose of helping to raise funds to support the delivery of infrastructure such as schools and
highways, required as a result of new development. The Borough Council has yet to decide
whether to adopt CIL for the High Peak.
3.52 Regulations require local authorities to undertake a clearly defined procedure prior to
adopting a CIL Charging Schedule, which sets out the level of charge the Council will require for
every additional square metre of new development. The requirements for consultation prior to
adoption include:
The publication and consultation of a Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule setting out the
Council’s initial consideration of an appropriate charge;
The publication of a Draft Charging Schedule on which representations can be made prior to
its submission for an independent examination. The consultation will be for a minimum of
four weeks;
An examination in public of the Draft Charging Schedule. All those who made representations
on the Draft Charging Schedule will have the opportunity to make an oral presentation at a
public hearing.
3.53 The Council will follow the process applied to Development Plan Documents (as described
earlier) in the production or review of a CIL Charging Schedule, recognising the importance of
early engagement within the development of new policy. The consultation methods to be used
for both the consultation on the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule and the Draft Charging
Schedule will be advertised on the Council’s website at an appropriate time.
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)
3.54 The Council is required to have an up to date Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)
setting out how it will involve the community in plan making and when considering planning
applications. The SCI will help to ensure that local communities have greater involvement in local
planning decisions and are better able to shape the places where they live.
3.55 The Council's existing SCI was adopted in May 2006. This document is the consultation
version of an update to that document. It has been prepared to take into account new legislation
and to incorporate new ideas, both aimed at increasing public involvement.

Page 35
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

17

Statement of Community Involvement

3 Background
3.56 When updating the SCI, a consultation draft will be subject to public consultation for a
minimum of six weeks, giving the opportunity for interested parties to suggest amendments, before
being presented to Council for adoption.
Local Development Scheme (LDS)
3.57 The LDS sets out a work programme for producing planning documents. This shows the
key consultation periods when public involvement is sought. The document is reviewed on a
regular basis and the most up to date version is available on the Council's website.

Page 36
18

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?
How we will consult
4.1 There are a wide range of techniques which can be used to involve individuals and
organisations in planning matters. The following methods (set out in the table below) will be used
as engagement and notification methods at various stages in the preparation of planning policy.
Please note that the Council does not undertake to use all of the methods listed, at all consultation
stages, or for all planning documents. Details of which methods will be used, when, along with a
target audience is set out in Tables 4 and 5.
4.2 It should be noted that methods used by the Council for community engagement will be
continually reviewed. As a result, some consultation activities used may not be set out in the
Statement of Community Involvement as they may be specific to the circumstances of the
consultation, or reflect new opportunities and best practice. Similarly, some of the engagement
methods listed may cease to exist or be superseded over time.
4.3
The Council will aim to make the most effective use of resources in its methods of
engagement. This may mean employing external facilitators; liaising with other service areas of
the Council or County Council; and combining participation exercises with other appropriate
community initiatives. In order to make effective use of resources there will also be an emphasis
on the use of online methods of notification about consultation and for undertaking the consultation
itself.
4.4 Effective engagement between Borough Councillors and Council Officers is also extremely
important when creating new planning policy documents. As the legislative process for the creation
of policy documents is constantly changing, provision of training to consider the Council's statutory
requirements at an early stage in the process will help to ensure that elected members are able
to make informed decisions on the content of their Council policy documents.

Page 37
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

19

20

The Council’s website will display up-to-date information on the various stages of
consultation as well as all documentation relating to the plan – this is required by
Regulations.

Borough Council’s
Website

Page 38

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

(electronic and
paper)

Questionnaires and
Response Forms

Facebook, Twitter

Social Media e.g.

Raising awareness

Providing
information and
raising awareness

TYPE OF
INVOLVEMENT

A paper based version of questionnaires / response forms will be made available for
those who cannot, or prefer not to, use the online consultation portal.

This method will be delivered primarily through the Council's online consultation portal. Gathering opinion
Types of questions used may differ according to the stage of policy preparation, for
example questions could be broad and open at earlier stages of production, or multiple
choice format in relation to a particular topic at a later stage.

The Council also has a Twitter account and regularly sends tweets to its followers. It
is not expected to use social media as a means of enabling response to consultations,
as the Council’s online portal performs this role. The Council will not accept any
inappropriate / abusive comments sent via its social media pages in response to
consultations.

Social media such as the Council's Facebook page will be used for notification about
key events such as planning policy preparation or consultation dates - sign posting to
the information on the website.

A link from the home page of the Council’s website to the consultation page will be
used where possible to help ensure that interested parties are able to easily find
documents.

Details of the website address will be included in each publication. Shortened links will
be used wherever possible to make it easier to access information.

HOW IT WILL WORK

METHOD

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?

Consultation Portal

METHOD

TYPE OF
INVOLVEMENT

Page 39

Neighbour
notifications

Early in the process of the preparation of planning policy documents considered by the Providing
Council likely to be of high public interest, such as site allocations policies, the Council information and
will seek to raise awareness of its proposals through direct mail shots / leaflets to
raising awareness
neighbouring properties - business and residential.

Paper copies of
Paper copies of consultation documents will be available to view at Council Offices and Providing
consultation material libraries in line with Regulations.
information and
raising awareness
The scope of some documents may be restricted to specific parts of the Borough and
in these cases only appropriately located venues will be used.

The Council encourages individuals and organisations to use its consultation portal
and publishes a step by step guidance note to support this.

The Council uses an online portal to publish its planning policy documents and to
Gathering opinion
manage consultation responses. The advantages include that users are required to
register onto the system and thus enter their contact details directly, reducing data entry
errors. Users can also read all comments submitted by other consultees. The system
facilitates preparation of reports to analyse the comments made and automatic
generation of emails to users facilitates sending notifications and receipts.

The use of response forms (online and paper) by the Borough Council is well
established. As well as being preferred by the Planning Inspectorate (for those
documents which undergo independent examination), they tend to be quicker and easier
for the Council to process, and provide a structure within which the participant can
respond to specific parts of a plan. However the Council also accepts comments made
by letter or email outside this questionnaire format. Formal forms based on a model
form from the Planning Inspectorate are used by the Council at publication stage of a
development plan document and supplementary planning document.

HOW IT WILL WORK

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

21

22

Consultation
Database

METHOD

TYPE OF
INVOLVEMENT

Page 40

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Processed lawfully, fairly and transparently.

Collected only for specific legitimate purposes.

Adequate, relevant and limited to what is necessary.

Accurate and kept up to date.

Stored only as long as is necessary.

Managed to ensure appropriate security, integrity and confidentiality.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

The EU General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) superseded the UK Data Protection
th
Act 1998 on 25 May 2018. The legislation expands the rights of individuals to control
how their personal data is collected and processed, and places a range of new
obligations on organisations to be more accountable for data protection. In managing
the information on its database the Council adheres to the six data protection principles.
Personal data will be:

The Council maintains a database of contact details for those individuals / organisations Providing
who have made comments on planning policy documents, registered their own details information and
on the consultation portal, or who have otherwise requested to be kept updated with
raising awareness
progress on planning policy. The database also includes contact details for those
organisations listed in the Regulations that the Council is required to consult.

Statutory consultees will receive direct notification of all key consultation stages by
email or through the post in line with Regulations.

Mailshots are useful in raising awareness, however the geographical coverage of such
mail shots will depend on the nature of the proposals.

HOW IT WILL WORK

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?

Posters

Page 41

Publicity posters are a useful mechanism to let a community know about planning policy Raising awareness
consultations. When the Council considers that it would be beneficial, assistance from
Parish / Town Councils will be requested to display notices relating to planning policy
consultations and / or posters will be displayed in Council buildings at appropriate stages
during plan preparation.

If these site notices are removed by any third parties during the consultation period,
the Council cannot be held responsible and there is no guarantee that notices will be
replaced.

Site notices will be used to draw attention to proposed development site allocations at Providing
an appropriate stage in the plan preparation process. This is considered to be an information and
effective way of raising awareness of proposals, in particular notifying interested parties raising awareness
living and / or working close to potential development site options.

Site Notices

Providing
information and
raising awareness

TYPE OF
INVOLVEMENT

The Council will produce documents in alternative formats on request; this includes
large print, audio, and in languages other than English. The Council will include
information about this service in its consultation documentation and on its website.

A review of the records held will be conducted from time to time to ensure that those
on the database would still like to be included. For convenience, an opportunity to opt
out of receiving consultations on planning policy documents will be given when
consultation notifications are sent out.

The Council’s preference is to communicate with interested parties electronically, as
this is quicker and more cost effective. E-mail alerts of forthcoming consultations and
other notifications will be sent out to those with an e-mail address on the Consultation
Database. Postal communications will also take place at appropriate times with those
who do not have an e-mail address registered on the database.

HOW IT WILL WORK

Availability of
documents in
alternative formats

METHOD

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

23

24

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

The Council has previously undertaken a series of "Community Conversations". These Gathering opinion
were employed as part of the initial stages of public consultation relating to new land
use proposals. The "conversations" were facilitated by experienced practitioners and
took the form of "outreach" meetings held at community venues with local residents /
community groups given support with undertaking map-based, interactive style planning
exercises.

Interactive events

Providing
information and
raising awareness

Public exhibitions and drop in sessions, where members of the public can discuss
issues with Planning Officers, will be held at key consultation stages to assist the public
in understanding and responding to proposals. Such sessions will be held at a number
of venues throughout the Borough and both within and outside office hours to help
ensure all interested parties are presented with a reasonable opportunity to attend.

Public exhibitions /
Drop-in sessions

Page 42

Gathering opinion.

Parish and Town
There is an established network of Parish and Town Councils throughout the Borough Gathering opinion.
Council engagement which will continue to be consulted on planning policy documents and planning
applications relevant to their areas. Parish and Town Councils which border the High Providing
information and
Peak are also consulted on planning policy documents where relevant.
raising awareness
In particular, the Council is committed to involving relevant Parish / Town Councils at
an early stage in the preparation of documents, where those document's proposals
may significantly affect their Parish. For example proposed allocation of sites for
development in the Local Plan. Appropriate methods of such early engagement, subject
to available resources, may include the offer of individual meetings to discuss initial
options.

The Council issues news releases to local, regional and (if appropriate) national, print, Providing
broadcast and online media outlets. However, clearly the Council cannot control whether information and
the press choose to feature the releases.
raising awareness

Media Releases

TYPE OF
INVOLVEMENT

HOW IT WILL WORK

METHOD

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?

The use of these events is very resource intensive and likely only to be applicable at
very early stages of major new planning policy.

HOW IT WILL WORK

TYPE OF
INVOLVEMENT

The Peak District Partnership was formally known as the Derbyshire Dales and High Gathering opinion
Peak Local Strategic Partnership. It draws together organisations working in the High
Peak and Derbyshire Dales, as well as from the statutory, voluntary and business
sectors. The Partnership Board will be notified at an early stage of significant planning
policy preparation through attendance at meetings and / or separate communications.

The Council is committed to ensuring equality in its planning policy consultations so
Gathering opinion
will take steps to engage with communities or sections of population deemed to be
"hard to reach", or not currently fully engaged with the planning policy process. The
Council will take advice from any individuals / organisations considered to represent
such communities or sections of population as to the best way of doing this at the time.
The particular sections of population and the level of work undertaken will be
commensurate with the nature of the document being produced, the likely impact that
proposals within the document will have on that population section, and available
resources.

Peak District
Partnership

Engagement with
communities or
sections of
population deemed to
be "hard to reach",
or not currently fully
engaged with the
planning policy
process.

Meetings /
As resources permit, the Council will meet and / or correspond with statutory consultees Gathering opinion
correspondence with and principal local interest groups where this will help to address particular specialist
statutory bodies and issues in more depth.
local interest groups

METHOD

Page 43

Table 3 Methods the Council will use to Engage with the Community

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

25

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?
4.5 It should be noted that the techniques listed in the table above are not exhaustive. New
consultation opportunities may become available and the Council may choose to use methods in
addition to those listed.

Who we will consult
4.6 The Council will target consultation towards those groups and individuals likely to have an
interest in any particular document. The Council has limited resources and therefore has to be
realistic in considering who to consult, when to consult, and how to do so most effectively. Careful
consideration of who we consult makes best use of Council resources and will also help to avoid
“consultation fatigue”, where too much consultation with non-interested parties can risk apathy.
4.7 The Council will, where practicable and sensible, make use of existing consultation networks
and opportunities to gain further reach as well as better value for money.
(i)

4.8 The Regulations set out three main stages of plan production where consultation is required.
These are:
Preparation of a Development Plan Document (Regulation 18).
Publication of a Development Plan Document (Regulations 19 and 20).
Submission of a Development Plan Document to the Secretary of State (Regulation 22).
4.9 Where Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) are prepared to add further detail to
the policies and proposals contained within development plan documents, the regulations set out
two stages of plan production where some consultation is required. These are:
Publication stage (Regulations 12 and 13).
Adoption (Regulation 14).
4.10 Regulations govern a minimum level of public involvement that the Council must meet, and
lists bodies that must be consulted when preparing Local Plans. These bodies are referred to as
"general consultation bodies" and "specific consultation bodies" (the statutory consultees). The
bodies have not been listed within this document as they are subject to change.
4.11 Tables 4 and 5 below identify consultation arrangements for the preparation of Development
Plan Documents and Supplementary Planning Documents, identifying who will be consulted, when
and how.
4.12 Please note that the tables contain an overview of awareness raising / consultation methods
available for each stage of Local Plan preparation. Not all methods will be used in each case, but
those most suitable and appropriate given the scale and nature of the consultation will be used.

i
26

The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

Page 44

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?
Stage
Preparation
Who
Preparation of a Evidence gathering. Specific and general
Local Plan
consultation bodies.
Scope
of
the
Plan.
(Regulation 18)
Town and Parish Councils.
Preferred Options.
Developers / land owners /
agents.

How
The following methods of
raising awareness /
consultation will be used in so
far as they are appropriate:

Publication of a Consult on
local plan
proposed
(Regulations 19 submission
and 20)
document

Web-site, on-line portal,
letter, e-mail, press release,
social media, deposit at
Council buildings, response
forms (paper and electronic)

Web-site, on-line portal, letter,
e-mail, press release, social
media, exhibitions / drop-in
Any residents or other
sessions, deposit at Council
persons carrying on business buildings, response forms
in the area from which the (paper and electronic),
Council considers it
meetings as appropriate,
appropriate to invite
neighbour notification and site
representations.
notices as appropriate
Specific and general
consultation bodies.
Those registered on the
Council’s database.
Any other residents or other
persons carrying out business
in the area from which the
Council considers it
appropriate to invite
representations.

Submission of Submission to the Specific and general
documents and Secretary of State consultation bodies.
information to the of Local Plan and all
Any others who have
Secretary of State associated
requested to be notified of
(Regulation 22) documents
submission.
Independent
examination
(Regulation 24)
Adoption
(Regulation 26)
Monitoring

Web-site, letter, e-mail,
social media, deposit at
Council buildings

Independent
All those who made
Web-site, letter, e-mail,
examination of plan representations in accordance deposit at Council buildings
by an appointed
with Regulation 20.
Inspector
Adoption of the plan Any person who has asked Web-site, letter, e-mail,
by the Borough
to be notified of adoption.
social media, deposit at
Council
Council buildings
Following adoption Any interested party.
Web-site, deposit at Council
of the Plan
buildings

(Regulation 34)
Table 4 Consultation on Development Plan Documents

Page 45
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

27

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?
Stage
Preparation

Preparation
Evidence
gathering
Preparing Draft
SPD

Who
How
Any of the specific and general
The following methods of
consultation bodies that the Council raising awareness /
considers may have an interest in consultation will be used in
the subject of the proposed plan or so far as they are
otherwise considers appropriate. appropriate:
Residents or other persons carrying Web-site, letter, e-mail,
on business in the area from which social media, on-line portal,
the Council considers it appropriate meetings as appropriate
to invite representations.

Public
Consult on Draft Specific and general consultation Web-site, letter, e-mail,
participation SPD
bodies
press release, social media,
(Regulations 12
deposit at Council buildings
Those who have participated in the
and 13)
earlier stages of plan preparation.
Any other residents or other persons
carrying on business in the area from
which the Council considers it
appropriate to invite representations.
Adoption
Adoption of the Any person who has asked to be
(Regulation 14) plan by the
notified of adoption.
Borough Council
Monitoring
Following
Any interested party.
(Regulation 34) adoption of the
Plan

Web-site, letter, e-mail,
social media, deposit at
Council buildings
Web-site, deposit at
Council buildings

Table 5 Consultation on Supplementary Planning Documents

How are comments / representations treated?
4.13 The Council will not accept anonymous representations and late representations will only
be accepted with the Council’s agreement. Comments made at earlier rounds of consultation on
a document will not normally be carried forward unless additional consultation is being undertaken.
Any outstanding issues must be re-submitted in order to be considered.
4.14 Copies of representations will be made available for inspection on the Council’s web-site.
Representations displayed on the web-site will have signatures and contact details of residents
redacted.
4.15 Comments received from all community engagement will be carefully considered, and the
changes proposed to a Local Plan or Supplementary Planning Document as a result, will be
reported to the appropriate Council meeting. Documents for submission to the Secretary of State,
as well as the final version of an SPD proposed for adoption will be approved by a meeting of the
full Council.

Page 46
28

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

4 How can you get involved in influencing the Content of
Planning Policy Documents?
4.16 The comments / representations (usually presented to Councillors in summary form due
to their number and length) form part of the "evidence base" provided to Councillors when they
are asked to make decisions. The evidence base consists of a range of information, all of which
is given due consideration in reaching a decision. Other evidence may include national guidance
and studies and other research. It will be for the Councillors to judge the weight to be given to
specific comments made and to balance those comments with other relevant sources of information
on the matter.
4.17 The Council is required to prepare a consultation statement setting out who was consulted
and how; a summary of the main issues raised by respondents and how these issues have been
taken into account for Local Plan documents and SPDs. The Council must then make a copy of
this statement available for comment (along with the document being prepared) during statutory
consultation periods. The Consultation Statement is submitted to the Secretary of State (for Local
Plan documents undergoing independent examination) as evidence that the Council has met the
contents of its SCI, as well as its statutory consultation requirements.

Page 47
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

29

Statement of Community Involvement

5 How can you get involved in the Decision Making Process
on Planning Applications?
5.1 High Peak Borough Council is committed to informing and engaging with the community on
planning applications. It is important that a balance is struck between providing the community
with a genuine opportunity to comment and determining applications within the statutory
determination period.
5.2 Anyone can respond to a planning consultation. In addition to individuals who might be
directly affected by a planning application, community groups and specific interest groups (national
as well as local in some cases) may wish to provide representations on planning applications.
5.3 Opportunities exist for the community and or stakeholders to be informed and consulted on
development proposals at each of the following stages:
Pre-application
Planning application
Planning appeal
5.4 Community involvement in planning applications not only involves the local community, but
also statutory and non-statutory consultees, depending on the nature and location of the proposals.
Statutory Consultees
5.5 Planning law prescribes circumstances where consultation must be undertaken with statutory
bodies on a planning application. These organisations are under a duty to respond to consultations
(ii)
within 21 days , or such longer period as may be specified in other legislation, and must provide
a substantive response to the application.
5.6 A list of statutory consultees on applications for planning permission is available via the
(iii)
National Planning Practice Guidance published on the Government's web-site.
Non-Statutory Consultees
5.7 Where there are planning reasons, other non-statutory consultees who may have an interest
in a proposed development may be consulted on planning applications, even though they are not
designated in law. Non-statutory consultees should respond within 21 days of being notified of
the application.
5.8 A list of the organisations identified in national policy and guidance who may have an interest
in development and may be consulted as non-statutory consultees are identified in the National
(iv)
Planning Practice Guidance published on the Government's web-site .

ii
iii
iv
30

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015 (as amended)
www.gov.uk/guidance/consultation-and-pre-decision-matters#Statutory-consultees-on-applications
www.gov.uk/guidance/consultation-and-pre-decision-matters#table-3-Non-statutory-consultees

Page 48

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

5 How can you get involved in the Decision Making Process
on Planning Applications?
Pre-application consultation
5.9 Pre-application engagement with the community is encouraged where it will add value to
the process and the outcome. For very large-scale development, pre-application consultation is
a requirement under the Localism Act 2011. It is mandatory to carry out pre-application consultation
with the local community for planning applications for wind turbine development involving more
than two turbines or where the hub height of any turbine exceeds 15 metres.
5.10 Effective pre-application consultation provides an early opportunity for applicants and
developers to find out the views of local residents on a development proposal. Where a local
community's suggestions can be taken into account in preparing a scheme, this can help to build
local support, help address any early design and development issues, and help to ensure
submission of a successful planning application.
5.11 The Council expects applicants to carry out their own pre-application consultation. The
level of community consultation at this stage should be appropriate and proportionate to the scale
of the application. Potential methods of pre-application consultation on proposals for major
development could include public meetings and exhibitions, workshops, websites, leaflets, social
and other media.
5.12 It is helpful if an applicant notifies the Council of any pre-application consultation before
the consultation commences.
5.13 Any pre-application consultation undertaken should be documented in a "Statement of
Community Involvement" to be submitted alongside a proposal. This document should describe
in detail the pre-application consultation that has been undertaken by the applicant, as well as
demonstrating how comments have been addressed in progressing the proposal.

Planning Application stage
5.14 It is important that all relevant planning issues associated with a proposed development
are identified and considered in the determination of a planning application. The Council is required
to undertake a formal period of consultation, so therefore publicises applications that are submitted
and invites comments from the local community and other consultees and stakeholders. Anyone
can respond to a planning consultation.
5.15 Consultees may be able to offer particular insights or detailed information which is relevant
to the consideration of the application, and comments made that are addressing "material
considerations" will be taken into account in the determination of the application.
5.16 There are significant amounts of information relating to planning applications on the Council’s
website and residents are encouraged to find out information on proposals using this method
where possible.
5.17 It is important to note that whilst comments addressing material considerations will be taken
into account in determining the application, consultation responses are unlikely to be the only
factor under consideration and may not prove to be the determining factor. Local or national policy,
or other material considerations, may lead to a decision that is contrary to views expressed during
consultation.

Page 49
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

31

Statement of Community Involvement

5 How can you get involved in the Decision Making Process
on Planning Applications?
5.18 Article 15 of the Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
(v)
Order 2015 (as amended) sets out the minimum requirements for publicising and consulting on
planning applications. The requirements vary according to the type of development proposed,
(vi)
and further details are set out in National Planning Practice Guidance .
5.19 The deadline for submitting comments on a planning application will be set out in the
publicity accompanying the planning application. This is generally not less than 21 days, unless
the nature of the application requires no publicity, for example a discharge of conditions or non
material amendment. The Council is under no obligation to consider comments submitted after
the deadline.
5.20 The methods that the Council uses to publicise applications and consult the community,
which exceed these minimum requirements, are as follows:
Neighbour Notification Letters
5.21 The Council will notify any neighbours immediately adjoining a development proposal by
letter or email. The letter provides details of the planning application, where to view plans, how
to make comments and by what date. Any consultation wider than this will be on a case by case
basis and at the discretion of the case officer.
Site Notice
5.22 Site notices are displayed on or near to the application site. Site notices provide details of
the planning application, where to view plans, how to make comments and by what date.
Publication on the Council’s website
5.23 Weekly lists of applications received and decisions made are available on the Council’s
website. All planning applications that have been or are being processed, including appeals, are
also available.
Inspection of Plans
5.24 As well as being publicised on the Council’s web-site, planning applications are also
available for inspection electronically at the Town Hall in Buxton, or Glossop Municipal Buildings
during normal office hours. An appointment to view plans is only required if the plans are old (and
thus only available on microfiche), or if discussion of the plans with an officer is requested.
Public Notice
5.25 A Public Notice is placed in a local newspaper for certain types of planning applications.
For example, major or significant development proposals, departures from local policy or where
there is a statutory requirement such as for Listed Building Consent.

v
vi
32

The Town and Country Planning (Local Authority Consultations etc. (England) Order 2018
www.gov.uk/guidance/consultation-and-pre-decision-matters#statutory-publicity-requirements

Page 50

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

5 How can you get involved in the Decision Making Process
on Planning Applications?
Town and Parish Councils
5.26 Town and parish councils are sent details of all current planning applications within their
area for information and comment. Town and parish councils whose areas adjoin High Peak may
also be sent details of planning applications which are considered likely to have an impact on their
areas. This will be applied at the discretion of the Council, but applies in all cases for wind turbine
applications.
Re-consultation following amendments to an application
5.27 Where an application is amended after it has been submitted, further consultation may be
undertaken if the proposed changes are significant. Any representations received subject to any
round of consultation will be taken into account in evaluating the merits of the application. Any
representation received outside of the consultation period may not be fully considered. The
time-frame for responses to re-consultation will be decided on a case-by-case basis.
5.28

If a new planning application is required, this will be subject to new public consultation.

Development Control Committee
5.29 Most planning applications are determined by planning officers under powers delegated
to them by the Council.
5.30 Some planning applications, mainly the larger or more contentious ones, are considered
by the Borough Council Development Control Committee. Applicants, residents and other interested
parties are able to address the Committee. Everyone who has made a representation on an
application to be considered by the Committee is contacted by letter, with detail of the next steps
should they wish to attend and / or speak at Committee.
5.31 Members of the public may also contact members of the Development Control Committee
with regard to their concerns, however committee members may not be able to respond until they
have heard all of the evidence provided at Committee.
(vii)

5.32 Details of committee meeting dates and times are publicised on the Council’s website
.
Meetings of the Development Control Committee take place in the Town Hall, Chapel-en-le-Frith
at 1.30pm. Agendas are published a week before the meeting.
5.33 Various reports into standards of conduct in public life and the subsequent ethical guidance
introduced under Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Localism Act 2011 have
emphasised the need for high standards in all aspects of local authority business, including planning
matters. It is essential that all persons having contact with the Council in relation to these matters
should have confidence that the conduct of Councillors and officers is consistent and fair to all
parties. It is also essential that all Councillors and officers involved in the planning process are
clear on the standards which are expected of them. These issues are set out in more detail in
High Peak's Protocol on Land Use Planning Matters and Development Control Committee.

vii

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=146

Page 51

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

33

Statement of Community Involvement

5 How can you get involved in the Decision Making Process
on Planning Applications?
Permission in Principle
5.34 Permission in principle may be granted for housing-led development (this can include mixed
development but must primarily be housing). The legislation is set out in the Town and Country
(viii)
st
Planning (Permission in Principle) (Amendment) Order 2017
and came into force on 1 June
2018.
5.35 On receipt of an application for permission in principle, the Council will consult bodies
identified in Schedule 4 to the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015 and take in to account any responses received.
5.36 The Council will also consult any body that would have been required to have been consulted
in relation to an application for planning permission. Where consultation is required, the Council
will provide a statutory body with any relevant information it holds about the site in question.
5.37 Applications for Technical Details Consent based on a granted Permission in Principle
should be submitted as an application for Full Planning Permission (with details of the related
Permission in Principle provided) and will be treated by the Council in accordance with procedures
for a full planning permission submission.

Appeals
5.38 Details of appeals, including relevant appeal documents, are publicised on the Council's
web-site.
5.39 When a planning application is refused, the applicant may lodge an appeal against the
decision with the Planning Inspectorate. An appeal may also be submitted when the applicant
considers any conditions of approval to be unacceptable, or in the event that an application is not
determined by the relevant deadline.
5.40 Only the applicant can appeal against a planning decision. There is no "third party" right
of appeal for other people who disagree with the Council’s decision. However, anyone can
challenge a planning decision in the courts if they have evidence that the decision was not made
following the proper procedures. Legal challenges cannot take into account whether the decision
was right or not in planning terms, only whether regulations and conventionsabout making decisions
were properly followed.
5.41 All those who were notified of the original application or submitted comments will be informed
if an appeal is made. There is then an opportunity for additional comments to be submitted directly
to the Planning Inspectorate, who will determine the appeal, either through written representations,
an informal hearing or a public inquiry, depending on the nature and scale of the application.
Where is it decided that the appeal should be determined by informal hearing or public inquiry,
interested parties are also given the opportunity to appear before the Inspector at the hearing or
inquiry.
5.42 The Inspector will consider the evidence and decide whether the Council’s decision was
correct. The Inspector’s decision is binding on the Council, although it can be challenged by
anyone on a point of law in the High Court.
viii S.I 2017/1309
34

Page 52

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

5 How can you get involved in the Decision Making Process
on Planning Applications?
Householder appeals service
5.43 An appeal in connection with refusal of a householder application (“a householder appeal”)
will normally proceed by written representations. This is considered to be an expedited process
and there is no opportunity for others to submit comments. However all the representations made
on the application are forwarded to the Planning Inspectorate and the appellant. These are
considered by the Inspector when determining the appeal.

Page 53
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

35

Statement of Community Involvement

6 Ensuring Equal Opportunities in Consultation
Our community
6.1 It is important that the views of a wide range of people within our community are represented
when shaping future planning policy in the High Peak.
Age and gender
6.2 In the 2011 census the population of High Peak was reported as 90,892 and is comprised
of approximately 49% males and 51% females.
6.3 Analysis of Census 2011 information indicates that 17% of the population in the Borough is
aged over 65 years. This is up from 15.5% recorded in the 2001 Census.
Health and care
6.4 According to the 2011 Census, over 7,000 people in High Peak are providing 1 - 19 hours
unpaid care a week; over 1,000 people are providing between 20 and 49 hours and around 2,000
people are providing 50 or more hours unpaid care each week. 40% of families in households in
the High Peak have dependent children.
6.5 According to the 2011 census, 18% of people in High Peak have a limiting long-term illness.
Of people resident in High Peak, 34% reported that they were in good health and 47% said they
were in very good health. 4% were in bad health and 1% considered they were in very bad health.
6.6 Whilst information about specific disabilities is not collected at Borough level, using national
percentages and population statistics, it is estimated that over 7,200 people in High Peak will have
mobility difficulties. Approximately 13,500 people in the Borough will have impaired hearing and
there may be around 900 people with profound hearing loss. There are an estimated 260 blind
people and a further 280 partially sighted people living in the Borough.
6.7 Information about mental health is again not available at Borough level, but using County
information on a pro-rata basis, it is estimated that around 24,000 people in High Peak may have
a mental health problem at any one time. There is likely to be around 700 people in High Peak
with dementia.
6.8 The estimated total number of people with a learning disability of working age, living in High
Peak, is 2,150.
Sexuality and religion
6.9 Stonewall and Government estimates that between 5 and 7% of the population is lesbian,
gay and bisexual. This is about 5,500 lesbian, gay and bisexual people living in High Peak.
6.10 There is a diverse range of religions and beliefs held and practiced in High Peak Borough.
At the time of the 2011 Census there were people who were Buddhists, Muslims, Sikhs, Hindus
and Jews, but the largest percentage (64%), greater than the regional and national averages of
59%, were Christians.

Page 54
36

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

6 Ensuring Equal Opportunities in Consultation
Poverty and social exclusion
6.11 According to the Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD2004), two Gamesley and one Stone
Bench Super Output Areas (SOAs) are among England's most deprived 20% of SOAs, which have
the following characteristics on average:
Just under a third of people are income deprived.
One in five of women aged 18-59 and men aged 18-64 are employment deprived.
Just under half of children live in families that are income deprived.
About a third of older people are income deprived.
Ensuring equal opportunities
6.12 The public sector Equality Duty came into force in April 2011. It means that public bodies
have to consider all individuals when carrying out their day-to-day work – in shaping policy, in
delivering services and in relation to their own employees.
6.13

It also requires that public bodies:
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination;
advance equality of opportunity;
foster good relations between different people when carrying out their activities.

6.14

The Council will be mindful of this when undertaking consultation.

6.15 Particular efforts will be made to engage with communities or sections of population deemed
to be "hard to reach", or who are not currently fully engaged with the planning policy process.
For example, arrangements can be made for copies of documents to be made available in large
print or another language on request.
6.16 Consultation methods will be tailored to increase the participation of communities or sections
of population deemed to be "hard to reach" wherever possible, for example:
Attending local meetings / forums representing groups where these exist and where resources
allow;
The use of interactive web-site links;
Use of social media such as Facebook and Twitter;
The production of planning policy documents and any related literature in alternative formats
and languages other than English; and
Ensuring all venues for events are accessible.

Page 55
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

37

Statement of Community Involvement

7 Review
7.1 Further reviews of this document will be undertaken if the Council considers that an update
would be beneficial.

Page 56
38

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

8 Appendix A Glossary of Terms Used
Annual Monitoring Report (AMR)
Annual report monitoring the implementation of the Local Development Scheme and the extent
to which policies in the Local Plan are being achieved.
Community Infrastructure Levy
The Community Infrastructure Levy is a new levy that local authorities in England and Wales can
choose to charge on new developments in their area. The money can be used to support
development by funding infrastructure that the council, local community and neighbourhoods want
– for example, new or safer road schemes, park improvements or a new health centre.
Community Right to Build Order
Introduced in the Localism Act 2011, these are made by a community organisation (set up as a
body which is established to further the social, economic and environmental well-being of individuals
living in a particular area) or the Parish/Town Council allowing them to bring forward a small
development for purposes such as new homes, businesses or community facilities. It is a site
specific application limited to the development site.
Development Plan Documents
Planning policy documents which make up the Local Plan. They help to guide development within
a local planning authority area by setting out the detailed planning policies, which planning officers
use to make their decisions on planning applications.
Duty to Co-operate
A statutory requirement that neighbouring local authorities, including County Councils and other
public bodies, engage constructively, actively and on an on-going basis on cross boundary matters
(e.g. levels of housing, employment, road links etc).
General Consultation Body
A voluntary body, some or all of whose activities benefit the local area, for example a body
representing the interests of racial, ethnic, national or religious groups, local interest groups, those
representing the interests of disabled persons or local businesses – as the Local Planning Authority
considers appropriate to consult.
Hard to Reach
Communities or sections of population deemed to be "hard to reach", are considered to be not
currently fully engaged with the planning process.
Local Development Scheme
A public statement of the Council’s programme for the preparation of its planning policy documents.

Page 57
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

39

Statement of Community Involvement

8 Appendix A Glossary of Terms Used
Masterplan
A comprehensive plan of a particular area providing a framework for future development often
adopted by Councils as Supplementary Planning Documents.
National Planning Policy Framework
Sets out national planning policies and how these are expected to be applied.
Neighbourhood Development Order
Allows planning permission to be granted in relation to a particular neighbourhood area for certain
types of development. The planning permission can vary from a number of homes on a specified
site to blanket consent, such as extensions to residential properties across the defined
neighbourhood area, though exclusions do apply.
Neighbourhood Planning
Introduced in the Localism Act 2011 to enable communities to get more involved in planning for
their areas – specifically around creating plans and policies to guide new development.
Representations
Responses made to consultations on planning policy documents during statutory consultations.
Statement of Community Involvement
Sets out the standards which authorities will achieve with regard to involving local communities in
the preparation of Local Plan documents, supplementary planning documents and development
control decisions.
Site Allocations
The inclusion of sites for future development in a Local Plan. This could be for a variety of uses
such as housing, employment, retail, leisure or a mixture of these, for example.
Specific Consultation Body
A list of organisations set out in Planning Regulations who must be consulted during the production
and publication of planning policy documents for example Natural England, Historic England,
Environment Agency.
Supplementary Planning Documents
Build upon and provide more detailed guidance about policies in the Local Plan.

Page 58
40

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Statement of Community Involvement

8 Appendix A Glossary of Terms Used
Sustainability Appraisal
A systematic process that must be carried out during the preparation of a Local Plan. Its role is
to promote sustainable development by assessing the extent to which the emerging plan, when
judged against reasonable alternatives, will help to achieve relevant environmental, economic and
social objectives. Optional for Supplementary Planning Documents – depends on the subject
matter.
Sustainable Community Strategy
A long-term strategy for the economic, social and environmental well-being of the area. The
Authority should have regard to the Strategy’s ambitions when preparing their own plans and
strategies.

Page 59
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

41

Statement of Community Involvement

9 Appendix B Sources of Information & Advice on Planning
The Planning Portal
The Planning Portal is the Government's online 'one-stop-shop' for planning and building services.
It provides information on the planning system, allows you to submit a planning application, find
out about development in your area, appeal against a decision and research government policy.
Website: https://www.planningportal.co.uk/
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
The MHCLG provides general information on the planning system including the latest national
planning policy, decisions on planning appeals, research and statistics and reform of the planning
system.
Website:
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ministry-of-housing-communities-and-local-government
Planning Aid England (PAE)
Planning Aid England provides free, independent and professional planning advice to communities
and individuals who cannot afford to pay professional fees. It is provided by the Royal Town
Planning Institute.
Website: https://www.rtpi.org.uk/planning-aid/about-planning-aid/
The Planning Inspectorate
The Planning Inspectorate’s job is to make decisions and provide recommendations and advice
on a range of land use planning-related issues across England and Wales. The Planning
Inspectorate deals with planning appeals, national infrastructure planning applications, examinations
of local plans and other planning-related and specialist casework in England and Wales.
Website: https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate

Page 60
42

High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Page 61

Statement of Community Involvement

backCover

Page 62
High Peak SCI Consultation Draft November 2018

Appendix 2 - SCI Review
Responses received to consultation 6th November to 19th December 2018
Comment
ID

Page 63

Comment
by

Comment
(General comment / support / object)

SCI 1

Network Rail

SCI 2

Environment
Agency

General comment: Network Rail is a statutory consultee for any
planning applications within 10 metres of relevant railway land
(as the Rail Infrastructure Managers for the railway, set out in
Article 16 of the Development Management Procedure Order)
and for any development likely to result in a material increase in
the volume or a material change in the character of traffic using
a level crossing over a railway (as the Rail Network Operators,
set out in Schedule 4 (J) of the Development Management
Procedure Order); in addition you are required to consult the
Office of Rail and Road (ORR).
Please email all consultations (planning applications and
planning policies) to : TownPlanningLNW@networkrail.co.uk
General comment: As mentioned in the document the
Environment Agency is required to be consulted on planning
applications and Local Plans at the relevant statutory stages.
We would reiterate that we wish to be consulted by email at
planning.trentside@environment-agency.gov.uk as currently is
the case.
We wish to highlight that the Environment Agency now charges
for advice requested outside of our statutory requirements to
respond to planning applications and strategic documents.
Therefore if an applicant or the Local Authority would like advice
or Environment Agency involvement in any application or
strategic document outside of the statutory process, we would
ask that they contact the Environment Agency directly at
planning.trentside@environment-agency.gov.uk. We will be able
to offer details on what we offer and the costs associated with
this.

Officer response

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

Email address to be
retained on consultation
database.

No

Email address to be
retained on consultation
database.

No

Comment
ID

Comment
by

Page 64

SCI 3

Equality and
Human
Rights
Commission

SCI 4

Historic
England

Comment
(General comment / support / object)

Officer response

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

General comment: The Commission does not have the
resources to respond to all consultations, and it is not our
practice to respond to consultations on local plans or
infrastructure projects unless they raise a clear or significant
equality or human rights concern.
Local, Parish and Town Councils and other public authorities
have obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)
in the Equality Act 2010 to consider the effect of their policies
and decisions on people sharing particular protected
characteristics. We provide advice for public authorities on how
to apply the PSED, which is the mechanism through which
public authorities involved in the planning process should
consider the potential for planning proposals to have an impact
on equality for different groups of people. To assist, you will find
our technical guidance on line.
General comment: We support the reference to the need to
consult with specific consultation bodies throughout the process.
Historic England welcomes involvement at an early stage for
both planning policy and planning applications.
We are keen to advise on the development of planning
documents, evidence base etc. in order to ensure that the
historic environment is fully considered throughout the Local
Plan process. We also support the need for early engagement
with stakeholders during the Sustainability Appraisal process.
As the draft SCI sets out, there are regulatory requirements for
consulting us on planning applications too.
In terms of the above and the proposed preparation stages for
plan documents set out in Tables 1, 2, 4 and 5 we recommend
that the Stage 1 description 'Involve' also includes reference to
consultation since only Stage 2 sets out that comments are
invited at present. Stage 2 sets out a consultation timeframe
whereas this is not evident in the Stage 1 activities. One option

An Equalities Impact
Assessment (EqIA) has
been carried out for the
High Peak Local Plan. An
EqIA for the SCI is included
as part of this report.
Equalities impacts are
considered as part of the
assessment of all
development proposals.
The Planning Applications
Manager meets quarterly
with the High Peak Access
Group.

No

For clarity it would be
helpful to confirm that the
initial “involvement” stage of
document preparation
includes consultation. Table
1 on page 8 (Preparation
process for DPDs), and
Table 2 on page 9
(Preparation process for
SPDs) should be amended
as follows: “Stage 1:
Involve” to read: “Stage 1:
Involve and consult”.
Also Tables 1 and 2 should
have additional text added
to the consultation bullet
point of preparation

Yes. See
detail in
previous
column.

Comment
ID

Comment
by

Comment
(General comment / support / object)
in order to clarify matters would be to revise the Stage 1
description to 'Involve and consult'. It is considered it would also
be useful to set out timescales for consultation response for
Stage 1.

Page 65

SCI 5

Ms Georgia
Wild

SCI 6

Mr Dave
Bowyer

SCI 7

Mr Nick
Parsons

Object: When considering new development HPBC planning
should write to inform all nearby residents and those living on
access routes. This currently does not happen. Only immediate
addresses are contacted.
When the development would inevitably generate additional
traffic I believe residents on access routes should be informed.
Take Dew Pond Lane and Tongue Lane developments in
Buxton as a case in point.
Support: I support the council's sentiment about engaging the
local community in planning matters. I must say though that I
find the council is clearly struggling when it comes to engaging
with local residents and taking the views of local residents and
business owners into consideration when planning. The Market
Street / Cattle Market development is a perfect example of this
failure - many residents were not contacted, public, visible signs
were not attached to lamp posts, there was no local consultation
event. It was only when a small group of local volunteers got
involved in properly engaging the local community that people
began to learn about these developments and their anger and
frustration could be shared with the local council and the outline
planning meeting was ultimately postponed. We need a
neighbourhood plan where local champions can be relied upon
to ensure that residents are kept up to date. Local government
needs adequate funding to ensure that it has the resources to
engage with the local community properly.
Object: Par 5.20 thru 5.28 (Pages 32-33) covers the methods
that the Council uses to publicise planning applications and

Officer response
activities under Stage 1 to
read: “Any such
consultations are expected
to be for a minimum of six
weeks.”
When major developments
are proposed, a public
notice is placed in a local
newspaper. This may be
expected to act as
notification for wider
residents who may be
affected by a proposal.
Comments noted.

The Permission in Principle
(PiP) consent route has two

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

No

No

No

Comment
ID

Comment
by

Page 66
SCI 8

Mr Nick
Parsons

Comment
(General comment / support / object)

Officer response

consult the community, noting that this exceeds what is required
(by law).
Par 5.36 (Page 34) states that for a Permission in Principle
application, the Council will consult any body that would have
been required to have been consulted in relation to an
application for planning permission.
Par 5.37 (Page 34) states that applications Technical Details
Consent based on a granted Permission in Principle will be
treated by the Council in accordance with procedures for a full
planning permission submission.
This would seem to imply that for a planning application which
may be for outline consent or full planning permission, and for a
Technical Details Consent application there will be a full
community consultation as described in Par 5.20 thru 5.28, but
for a Permission in Principle application, the consultation will be
only that which is required (by law).
The document does not explain why the Council considers it
appropriate to have reduced community participation for a
Permission in Principle application in contrast, say to a planning
application for outline consent (which is not dissimilar to
permission in principle) when full community consultation would
take place.
Proposed change
The Council should carry out the same full community
consultation (Par 5.20 thru 5.28) for a Permission in Principle
application as for a planning application.
Object: Table 3 (Page 23) - Availability of documents in
alternative formats: “The Council will produce documents …in
languages other than English.”
Par 6.15 (Page 37) “…arrangements can be made for copies of
documents to be made available in …another language on
request.”

stages: the first stage (PiP)
establishes whether a site is
suitable in principle for
residential development,
and the second stage
(technical details consent)
is when the detailed
development proposals are
assessed. PiP does not
grant planning permission,
technical consent is
required for development to
proceed.
Decisions to grant PiP are
for local authorities. Such
decisions must be made in
accordance with the
development plan unless
material considerations
indicate otherwise. The
publicity requirements for
technical details consent
applications mirror the
approach taken for planning
applications.
The High Peak Equality and
Diversity Policy sets out to
achieve (amongst other
things) more effective
targeting of policy and
resources that will do the

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

Yes. Table 3
on page 23,
delete “and in
languages
other than
English”. Add

Comment
ID

Comment
by

Page 67
SCI 9

Mr Kevin
Skingsley

Comment
(General comment / support / object)

Officer response

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

Par 6.16 (Page 37) “The production of planning policy
documents and any related literature in ….languages other than
English;”
The translation of any and all planning documents into other
languages on request is a most onerous open-ended
commitment. As an extreme example, the Council’s compliance
to an individual’s request to translate the Examination Library of
the Local Plan into another language would surely be a very
poor use of taxpayers’ money.
The wording in the SCI goes beyond the requirements of the
Equality Act. As explained in the “Equality Act 2010: Public
Sector Equality Duty - Quick Start Guide”, the Equality Duty
does not require public bodies to take disproportionate action on
equality. A ministerial statement by the Communities Secretary
of March 2013 provided further clarification: “…the duty not to
discriminate and the public sector equality duty….is not a legal
duty to translate documents into foreign languages.” “…only
publish documents in English. Translation undermines
community cohesion by encouraging segregation.”
Proposed change
Rather than an unlimited commitment to translate any planning
related document irrespective of the demand level, the Council
should give consideration to translating selected planning
documents where there is a substantive demand.

most to increase equality.
The policy refers to
requesting information in
large print, Braille or audio
format.
A written Ministerial
Statement by Communities
Secretary Eric Pickles on
the use of translation
services by local authorities
published on 12 March
2013 states that the
translation of documents
into other languages may
be necessary in emergency
situations, but can be
provided unnecessarily
because of a
misinterpretation of equality
or human rights legislation,
and can have an
unintentional, adverse
impact on integration.

General Comment: The techniques outlined are tried and
tested methods which I fully support.
The problem or issue is one of resources and implementation. I
feel strongly in a built up area that the Council should notify
further afield than those whose properties which are directly
adjacent to the development site. This is particularly relevant
where the outline planning as put forward is in contravention

When major developments
are proposed, a public
notice is placed in a local
newspaper. This may be
expected to act as
notification for wider
residents who may be

the sentence:
“The Council
will publish
documents in
English only,
unless it can
be
demonstrated
that the
integration and
cost benefit of
doing so is
outweighed by
any
disadvantage.”
Para 6.15
delete “or
another
language on
request”.
Para 6.16
delete “and
languages
other than
English”.
No.

Comment
ID

Comment
by

Page 68

SCI 10

Mr Kevin
Skingsley

SCI 11

Mr Kevin
Skingsley

Comment
(General comment / support / object)

Officer response

with the Local Area Plan which states that developments should
not see a reduction in car parking. Where an application clearly
leads to a reduction in local parking and this will lead to the
displacement of vehicles onto neighbouring roads. There should
be a process in place to ensure that the community voice is
taken into account and efforts should be made to ensure a full
consultation, open meetings and the gathering of views. Local
Residents are keen to see the Corporation Yard development
move ahead and in a way which is considerate of local needs
and wishes rather than merely ploughing on by the Council to
achieve a maximum capital receipt.
Object: It is within the commercial sector seen as best practice
to liaise with local residents and businesses who have
objections or comments to see if there is a way forward which
can allay fears and concerns. The Council seems to be hiding
behind Austerity measures and a lack of resources to not meet
with those objecting to its own proposals. They seem to act in a
way which is not as a commercial business would. It is
concerning that as a Planning Authority and the proposer of an
application they were unwilling to meet with residents and
businesses prior to the submission for outline planning.
Preferring to meet later on in the process is simply not good
enough. It leads to anger in local communities, distrust of the
Council and a lack of a partnership approach. Working together
we can achieve a lot more in terms of good design, maintenance
of street scene.
The other factor which has caused concern is the view that
objecting to a development can be perceived as anti
development. We all wish to see our local communities
enhanced.
General comment: Comment on the review section in Section 5
- I think it is concerning that there is no appeal process where

affected by a proposal. The
Council publishes guidance
for developers on preapplication consultations.

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

Comments noted.

No

The power of local planning
authorities to grant

No

Comment
ID

Comment
by

Page 69

Comment
(General comment / support / object)

Officer response

the Council are making their own application and they attempt to
put it through outline planning and their own committee without
following the consultation methods outlined in earlier sections.
For the sake of transparency and community confidence in the
processes it seems imperative that there are safeguards put in
place to encourage best practice and not minimal lowest
possible standards.

themselves planning
permission is subject to a
number of safeguards. The
procedures governing
development by local
authorities are contained in
the Town and Country
Planning General
Regulations 1992, with
guidance in Environment
Circular 19/92. The general
principle underlying these
regulations is that local
authorities must make
planning applications in the
same way as any other
person applying for
planning permission. The
proposals must be
advertised and applications
may not be determined by a
committee or officer
responsible for the
management of the land or
buildings concerned. The
public cannot be excluded
from committee meetings at
which local authority
development proposals are
to be discussed. If it is
intended to approve a
proposal that is not in

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

Comment
ID

SCI 12

Comment
by

Derbyshire
County
Council

Comment
(General comment / support / object)

Officer response

Page 70

accordance with the
development plan in force in
the area, the application
must be notified to the
Secretary of State so that
they can consider whether
to call in the application for
their own determination.
Letter with full comment attached.
It would improve the
effectiveness of the
Summary points made: Member comment: Grant of planning
permission should consider build quality. The Borough Council
document to make the
following amendments:
has approved schemes that when built have resulted in the
County Council being required to spend money on remedying
Add the suggested
defects such as surface water flooding and weeds growing in the additional examples of
road.
cross boundary matters to
Officer comment: The proposed revised SCI is a comprehensive the first sentence of
document that would ensure the Borough would meet all its
paragraph 3.34.
requirements in terms of community engagement.
Add a new paragraph
Paragraph 3.34: It would be helpful to add Green Belt, school
following 3.53 (CIL) to state:
place planning provision, Green Infrastructure, and public health “Derbyshire County Council
to the list of examples of cross boundary issues over which the
is responsible for the
Council will engage with the County Council as part of the Duty
delivery of key strategic
to Co-operate.
infrastructure. The Council
Paragraphs 3.51 – 3.53 regarding Community Infrastructure
will consult and collaborate
Levy (CIL) charging schedule should include reference to the
with the County Council in
need for the Council to continue to engage with the County
setting any levy, and work
Council on an on-going basis on this issue.
closely with the authority in
The General Data Protection Regulation 2018 is appropriately
setting priorities for how a
covered.
levy would be spent.”
Regulation 10A (1)(b) of the Town and Country Planning (Local
Paragraph 7.1 to be
Planning) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2017 introduced amended to read: “A review
the requirement to review the SCI every five years following the
of this document will be

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

Yes. See
details in
previous
column.

Comment
ID

Comment
by

Comment
(General comment / support / object)
date of its adoption. Paragraph 7.1 should be revised to better
reflect this requirement.

Officer response

Modification
proposed to
SCI?

completed every five years,
starting from the date of its
adoption, in accordance
with section 23 of the
Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004
(adoption of local
development documents).

Late representations

Page 71

Comment
ID
N/a

Comment
by
Disley
Parish
Council

Comment

Officer response

Disley Parish Council fully supports the High Peak Borough
Statement of Community Involvement Review and in
particular considers future cross border consultation
imperative for the following reason.
Disley and Newtown is a small parish on the periphery of
Cheshire East Council bordered by both High Peak
Borough Council and Stockport (Greater Manchester). In
2012 Cheshire East Council declared an Air Quality
Management Area along the A6 in the village which means
that any future proposals particularly on transport and
housing development within neighbouring authorities will
have a significant impact on the village. Working together
with adjoining authorities is a key part of the Cheshire East
Air Quality Action Plan to collectively improve air quality
along the A6 corridor.

In line with paragraph
5.26 of the SCI, the
Council will ensure that
town and parish councils
whose areas adjoin High
Peak continue to be sent
details of planning
applications which are
considered likely to have
an impact on their areas.

Modification
proposed
No

N/a

Richard
Hough

Page 72

Disley and Newtown have developed a Neighbourhood
Plan which includes a policy to address serious local
concerns about air quality in terms of any future
developments in the village, but this will not be achieved in
isolation.
The neighbourhood notification letter is the only information
that households directly receive and these contain
insufficient detail. The letter directs the recipient to the
planning application website. The planning application
website contains much detail, most of it technical, which
means information overload for anyone without the time
and motivation to plough through the many documents.
Hence people cannot “see the wood for the trees” and are
reluctant to comment.
The above is not a problem where the developer engages
directly with the community and presents a concise
explanation of his planning application. Eg attached leaflet
from Persimmon Homes re proposed development on the
derelict Harpur Hill College Site.
I suggest a requirement for a copy of the developer’s
leaflet to be attached to the neighbour notification letter
and where the developer refuses to provide one, this
refusal is made clear and is taken into account when the
application goes before the Development Control
Committee.
An example of the above problem is the application to
develop Foxlow Farm, Harpur Hill. The developer did not
produce an explanatory leaflet and failed to engage with
the community in any way but argued at the November
2018 planning development committee meeting that the
lack of feedback from the community indicated their
approval of the planning application.

Publishing information
online in an open data
format is considered to
aid transparency and
help facilitate
engagement with
residents and other
interested parties on
planning applications.
Should the Council help
to distribute material
prepared by a developer
in support of their
application, there is a risk
of a perception that the
Council endorses that
information.
The Council publishes
guidance for developers
on pre-application
consultations.

No

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 75

Page 76

Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Economy and Growth Select Committee
7 February 2019

TITLE:

Greater Manchester Spatial Framework

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Tony Ashton - Leader

CONTACT OFFICER:

Sarah Porru – Regeneration Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

All

Appendices Attached – None
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To notify Councillors of the consultation on the Greater Manchester Spatial
Framework and to seek approval for the Council’s approach in terms of a
response and ongoing engagement.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That Councillors note the proposals of the consultation.

2.2

That Councillors support the proposed approach to respond to the consultation
as set out in Section 5.1 and Chapter 7.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

A revised version of the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework is subject to
public consultation until 18th March. The plan sets out the quantum and
distribution of housing and employment land requirements across Greater
Manchester. Strategic policies and allocations are also set along with the
identification of necessary supporting infrastructure. The level of housing and
Green Belt release has been reduced from the 2016 consultation.

3.2

The implications of the plan for migration and commuting between High Peak
and Greater Manchester are currently unclear. However, there is a risk that
plan could lead to further pressure for housing growth in High Peak and
exacerbate transport infrastructure constraints. These issues will be explored
with the Greater Manchester Combined Authority on 30th January.

3.3

It is proposed that the Council submits a joint response to the consultation with

Page 79

Derbyshire County Council and continues to engage with the Greater
Manchester Combined Authority on the plans and associated infrastructure
works as they evolve. A Statement of Common Ground is also likely to be
prepared which will identify shared strategic planning issues and areas of cooperation as required by the National Planning Policy Framework.
4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The cross boundary impacts arising the Greater Manchester Spatial
Framework will have implications for:

•
•
•

Aim One: To help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to
live
Aim Three: To support economic development and regeneration
Aim Four: To protect and improve the environment

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

Option 1 (recommended) – that Councillors note the details of the Greater
Manchester Spatial Framework and support the proposed approach for the
Council to respond.

5.2

Option 2 (not recommended) – that Councillors decide not to respond with the
consultation. This option would not allow the Council to influence the emerging
strategy.
Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Location
Background Papers
Consultation website:
https://www.gmconsu
lt.org/communication
s-and-engagementteam/gmsf/

Contact details
Sarah Porru
sarah.porru@highpeak.
gov.uk

HPBC / DCC
response to 2016
consultation:
http://gmsfconsult.objective.co.u
k/common/search/ad
vanced_search.jsp?i
d=1048785&eventId=
29624&sortMode=res
ponse_date&looking

Page 80

For=representations
&tab=list

6.

Detail
Background

6.1

In 2014, the Association of Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA) agreed to
prepare a joint Development Plan to set out strategic housing and employment
growth plans across Greater Manchester over the next 20 years. In 2016, an
early draft of the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) was subject
to consultation. This plan included ambitious proposals for growth which were
dependant on Green Belt release. This generated a significant response with
concerns raised by various groups regarding loss of Green Belt in particular. In
2017, Andy Burnham was elected mayor of Greater Manchester under a
devolution agreement which granted the Mayor powers to produce a Spatial
Strategy. However, the constituent authorities have all committed to seeking
full Council approval for the plan as it moves forward.

6.2

High Peak Borough Council submitted a joint response with Derbyshire
County Council to the 2016 consultation. Issues raised included the need for
co-operation on transport infrastructure delivery and concerns regarding a
potential imbalance between the proposed level of housing employment
growth which may lead to an unsustainable pattern of development.

6.3

Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as inserted
by section 110 of the Localism Act 2011 introduced a duty to co-operate in
relation to the preparation of Local Plan and Spatial Development Strategies.
In order to demonstrate compliance with this requirement, the new National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in 2018 sets out that
Statements of Common Ground should be prepared between relevant
planning authorities in order to set out issues for co-operation and any
agreements. This should include consideration of whether identified needs for
development should be met in neighbouring areas or vice versa.

6.4

At the time of writing, officers are scheduled to attend a meeting with the
Greater Manchester Combined Authority and other authorities that share a
boundary with the GMSF on 30th January. This will provide a briefing on the
content of the GMSF and provide an opportunity to discuss potential duty to
co-operate matters for a future Statement of Common Ground.
Next steps

6.5

The consultation on the revised GMSF will run until 18th March 2019. Subject
to approval by all ten Greater Manchester authorities, a further consultation on

Page 81

the GMSF will take place in September 2019. The plan will then be submitted
to the Secretary of State for examination in early 2020. Adoption is currently
scheduled for late 2020 / early 2021. Upon adoption the GMSF will provide the
overarching strategy to shape individual Local Plans and Neighbourhood
Plans to be prepared by the local planning authorities and local communities
to provide additional detail and non-strategic allocations where necessary.
Draft GMSF
6.6

The GMSF sets out strategic policies and strategic site allocations for Greater
Manchester up to the year 2037. It sets out the level of housing and
employment development that will be required across each of the 10 districts
and broad locations where this will be achieved. Associated key infrastructure
projects and Green Belt boundary changes are also identified.

6.7

To address concerns raised in response to the 2016 consultation by residents
and other groups, the revised GMSF proposes a number of changes. They
include:






6.8

More efficient use of land – there is a greater focus on developing brownfield
sites within the urban area (87% within the urban area). Higher densities for
housing are also proposed in accessible locations such as town centres.
Reduction in Green Belt loss – 50% less Green Belt land is proposed to be
released
Enhanced proposals for Green Infrastructure and environmental
improvements to support health and wellbeing
Closer consideration of the appropriate mix of housing, including a definition of
affordable housing fro Greater Manchester.
Preparation of an Infrastructure Strategy over the next 12 months to set out
how infrastructure required to support growth will be delivered
A summary of pertinent proposals is provided below:
Spatial Strategy and Strategic Policies

6.9

The Spatial Strategy seeks to focus growth in the urban centre and in areas in
need of regeneration. A Core Growth Area comprising of central Manchester,
south-east Salford, and north Trafford is identified to accommodate economic
and housing growth. The Inner Area Regeneration (surrounding inner parts of
Manchester, Salford and Trafford) will be the focus for urban regeneration,
growth and improvements to enhance the quality of life. In order to address,
the relative under investment in the north of Greater Manchester (including
Tameside and Oldham), the focus here will be to Boost Northern
Competitiveness. The broad approach to the south (including Stockport and
south Manchester) which is relatively affluent is to Sustain Southern
Competitiveness.

6.10

The continued operation and growth of Manchester Airport is also supported
alongside associated transport improvements - HS2 station, improved rail
services to other city regions, Metrolink extension to HS2 station and bus
services. This will support significant employment and housing growth in the

Page 82

vicinity of the Airport - 500,000 sq m of office, logistics, hotel and advanced
manufacturing space at “Airport City”, further development of areas around
Wythenshawe Hospital as a health and bio-tech cluster, 60,000 sq m of office
floorspace around the new HS2 station and 2400 homes.
6.11

Town Centres, including Stockport and Ashton-under-Lyne, will continue to be
the primary focus for primary focus for office, retail, leisure and cultural activity
in their immediate vicinities. The plan also aspires to significantly increase the
population in Town Centres with new housing.

6.12

Other strategic policies provide a framework for the protection and
enhancement of green infrastructure corridors and the provision of a
sustainable and integrated transport network. This includes an ambitious aim
to enable half of all daily trips to be made by public transport, walking or
cycling.

A Sustainable and Resilient Greater Manchester
6.13

This Chapter provides policies which prioritise brownfield developments,
support the aim of making Greater Manchester carbon neutral by 2038,
supporting decentralised heat and energy networks, managing and mitigating
flood risk, ensuring developments are resilient to disasters, including terrorism
and planning for minerals and waste.

6.14

A Clean Air Policy is also proposed which sets out how air pollutions concerns
will be addressed with a focus on location where people live, where children
learn and play and where air quality targets are not being met. Measures
include; requiring applications that are likely to have an adverse effect on air
quality to submit pollution data and require future monitoring, ensuring the
design and location of development is appropriate, expanding the network of
public and private electric vehicle charging points through new developments,
controlling traffic and parking around schools and supporting green
infrastructure, including the use of building materials which capture air
pollutants.
A Prosperous Greater Manchester

6.15

Policies in this chapter seek to support the emerging Local Industrial Strategy
for Greater Manchester which aims to create a “digital enabled, green city
region”. High value clusters in the advanced manufacturing, business, financial
and professional services, digital, health innovation and logistics sections will
be facilitated. At least 2,460,000 sq m of new office floorspace and 4,220,000
sq m of new industrial and warehousing floorspace will be provided in over the
period 2018-2037. Whilst the level of office provision appears to be a
continuation of past trends, planned growth in industrial and warehousing will
represent a 25% uplift on past trends.

6.16

Key locations for economic growth include the core area stretching from the

Page 83

Etihad Campus in the east through the City Centre to Salford Quays and
Trafford Park in the west. The Manchester Airport Enterprise Zone and
Stockport and Ashton-under-Lyne Town Centres are also identified amongst
other locations of lesser significance to High Peak.
Homes for Greater Manchester
6.17

The GMSF states that planned housing growth is driven by demographic
changes and proposed scale of economic growth. Policy GM-H 1 (Scale of
New Housing Development) states that a minimum of 201,000 net additional
dwellings will be delivered in Greater Manchester over the period 2018-37
(annual average of around 10,580). This requirement follows the
Government’s new standard methodology for assessing housing need which
takes household projections published by the Office for National Statistics and
applies an uplift to reflect market signals which suggest affordability is an
issue.

6.18

The level of housing growth is 7% less than that included in the 2016 version
of the GMSF. It isn’t clear from the new GMSF or supporting documents if an
appropriate balance between housing and employment growth is planned.
Unlike the past Government guidance under which the 2016 GMSF was
drafted, the Government’s new standard methodology for calculating Local
Housing Need does not include an expectation that economic factors are
included in the assessment. The new approach leaves the consideration of
economic factors to the discretion of the plan making authority.

6.19

In line with the proposed Spatial Strategy, housing is planned to be distributed
amongst the 10 Districts based on policy aspirations rather than their
individual needs. Of the total housing planned across Greater Manchester only
4.4% is earmarked for Tameside (466 per year – the lowest of all GM Districts)
and 7.2% in Stockport (764 per year). In contrast, 27% of the total housing
growth will come forward within the boundary of the City of Manchester and
16.4% in Salford.

6.20

A range of housing types and sizes to meet local needs is supported but
details requirements on this issue will be set in the Local Plans of the
respective Districts. Minimum densities for housing development are also set
in terms of the relative accessibility of the site by walking, cycling and public
transport.
A Greener Greater Manchester

6.21

This Chapter sets out overarching policies for biodiversity, geodiversity,
landscapes, rivers and waterways, green spaces, green infrastructure and
Green Belt. In relation to green infrastructure, Policy GM-G 8 (Green
Infrastructure Opportunity Areas) defines areas with scope for improvements
which connect to green infrastructure in High Peak, namely; South Pennine
Moors and Mersey Valley.

6.22

Green Belt policy is also provided which establishes a revised boundary for
the Greater Manchester Green Belt. This releases land for allow for
development in locations including High Lane (considered later in this report)

Page 84

with come compensatory new Green Belt elsewhere.
A Connected Greater Manchester
6.23

The plan aims to improve the transport network so that half of all daily trips in
Greater Manchester can be made by public transport, cycling and walking by
2040. The “Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040” which sits alongside
the GMSF outlines how significant investment will be essential to achieving
this vision. The Strategy is supported by a 5 year Delivery Plan which sets out
the immediate and longer term programme for transport schemes needed to
support growth. Funding from central Government as well as investment via
developments will be required to deliver the schemes.

6.24

The Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 identifies the following
schemes of relevance to High Peak. In some cases, the strategy reflects
existing initiatives and funding commitments.


Scheme delivery within next 5 years:
o Mottram Moor and A57(T) to A57 Link Roads (committed
scheme)
o Hope Valley line upgrade (committed scheme)



Complete business case within next 5 years for early delivery:
o South Stockport rail infrastructure improvements for National Rail
/ HS2 / potential Metro/tram-train services



Develop options within the next 5 years for1:
o A6 – M60 Relief Road from SEMMMS2 (Hazel Grove –
Bredbury)
o Metro/tram-train services on the Marple, Glossop and Hazel
Grove lines
o Tintwistle and Hollingworth: further highway interventions

6.25

In addition to the above, the GMSF itself also identifies the potential new
station at Gamesley as part of the proposals for Tameside.
Site Allocations

6.26

1
2

Strategic allocations are proposed for housing and employment development
across Greater Manchester. Smaller sites will be allocated in future Local
Plans of the ten individual Districts. In response to feedback to the 2016
consultation, including significant concerns regarding Green Belt release,
Green Belt proposals have been reduced by 50%. Allocations in the vicinity of
High Peak include:

Some projects could be delivered by 2025 but most would be delivered in later years
South East Manchester Multi Modal Strategy Refresh

Page 85

Stockport


High Lane – 500 homes on an allocation that straddles the A6 to the west of
High Lane. This site requires Green Belt release. Improvements to highways
infrastructure are identified as a necessity in the policy.
Tameside



Godley Green Garden Village – 2350 homes adjacent to Godley and
Hattersley with a design and layout to reflect garden village principles. Village
hubs with community facilities and retail will be developed. Flexible workspace
is also proposed around Hattersley Train Station.

6.27

The High Lane allocation is a significant reduction from the allocation of 4000
homes in the 2016 GMSF. A strategic allocation put forward at the end of the
M67 at Mottram for 167 homes and 70,000 m2 of B1(c) and B2 employment
floorspace has been removed from the plan entirely. Both amendments help to
retain Green Belt.
Key issues for High Peak

6.28

Based on current analysis of the GMSF and supporting documents, the
following issues for High Peak have been identified. They primarily focus on
the relationship between High Peak and Greater Manchester in terms of
housing and employment growth, migration and commuting patterns and
subsequent implications for transport infrastructure.

6.29

It is not clear if the level of housing proposed across Greater Manchester is
sufficient to support planned economic growth. Evidence in the Strategic
Housing Market Assessments (SHMA) for High Peak (2014) and Greater
Manchester (2019) highlights the clear relationship between High Peak,
Stockport and Tameside in terms of migration3 and commuting4 patterns with
migration into High Peak and commuting back into Greater Manchester. The
High Peak SHMA states:
“…both Tameside and Stockport have significant housing market relationships
with High Peak and therefore cannot be considered as entirely independent
Housing Market Areas, but as Local Authorities with overlapping housing
markets.” (2014 SHMA, para. 2.34)

6.30

If a sufficient quantum of housing (and therefore labour supply) is not provided
within Greater Manchester (Stockport and Tameside in particular) to support
jobs growth, this could potentially increase the pressure for housing in
neighbouring authorities which are likely to be attractive locations for
commuters in to Greater Manchester.

Absolute migration flows into and out of Stockport with High Peak = 334. Absolute migration flows
into and out of Tameside with High Peak = 301 (2011 Census)
4 Flow of commuters, High Peak to Stockport = 3342. Flow of commuters, High Peak to Tameside =
2735 (2011 Census). Glossopdale, New Mills, Hayfield and Whaley Bridge lie within the Greater
Manchester Travel to Work Area as defined by the Office for National Statistics.
3

Page 86

6.31

Furthermore, the location and type of housing provided within Greater
Manchester will also have potential implications for future in-migration to High
Peak. The GMSF’s re-focus on higher density development within the city and
town centres may not be as attractive to families who may choose to search
for properties in more rural locations, further away from the main centres of
employment as a result. This may encourage an increase in commuting from
High Peak into Greater Manchester. This could impact on the need for
housing allocations in a future review of the High Peak Local Plan and
exacerbate transport constraints on the A6, A57/A628 and public transport
links.

6.32

This may undermine also the GMSF’s aspiration to enable half of all daily trips
in Greater Manchester to be made by public transport, cycling and walking by
2040. The delivery of the identified transport improvements will therefore be
paramount.

6.33

Many of the transport schemes are welcomed and reflect existing plans,
including; the Mottram Moor and A57(T) to A57 Link Roads (committed
scheme), Hope Valley line upgrade as well as further consideration of
consideration of highways improvements at Tintwistle and the provision of
Gamesley Station. It is recommended that the Council continues to work with
partners to inform and shape options as they develop.

6.34

The implications of proposed tram/train services lines will need further
consideration to determine their implications for existing services for High
Peak residents. In line with the Council’s response to the SEMMMS Refresh
consultation in 2018, the impact of the A6 - M60 Relief Road on the A6
through Newtown, Furness Vale and Bridgemont in particular will need close
scrutiny and potential mitigation to address increases in traffic which may arise
due to the new scheme. This should include consideration of air quality.

6.35

The delivery of transport infrastructure beyond the Greater Manchester
boundary into High Peak was also raised by the Council in the response to
SEMMMS. Funding opportunities for infrastructure available within Greater
Manchester are often not available on the Derbyshire side of the border and
further co-operation on cross boundary delivery may be required. It is
recommended that this issue is re-iterated.

6.36

In terms of the strategic allocations at High Lane and Godley, it is considered
that development in such locations may help to encourage commuters and
families who do not want a city or town centre lifestyle to reside closer to the
main centres of employment. This may alleviate pressure for housing growth
in High Peak in the future. Policies associated the development of these sites
appear to address the need to ensure that the necessary transport
improvements will come forward with development.

6.37

Proposals for business growth in the GMSF can be cautiously welcomed, on
the proviso that transport improvements will be delivered and growth in the
GMSF will not lead to unsustainable patterns of development. Measures to
improve air quality and to enhance Green Infrastructure connections with High

Page 87

Peak are also supported and could be a matter for co-operation moving
forward.
Proposed response
6.38

Officers are scheduled to meet with the Greater Manchester Combined
Authority (GMCA) on 30th January to discuss the GMSF and explore the
issues raised above. This meeting may provide some of the clarity called for
regarding the balance between housing and employment growth and
infrastructure delivery. A verbal update will be provided on the outcome of this
at the Growth and Economy Select Committee meeting.

6.39

Derbyshire County Council has indicated a willingness to prepare a joint
response with the Borough Council. This has particular merit given the County
Council’s transport and highways remit. Subject to further information
obtained from the GMCA and feedback from the Economy and Growth
Committee it is proposed that a joint response to the consultation is submitted
which highlights the above matters. The Council will also need to continue to
engage with the GMCA and neighbouring authorities on the preparation of a
Statement of Common Ground. This may reflect the themes set out in the
Council’s response.

Page 88

Agenda Item 7
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Economy and Growth Select Committee
7 February 2019

TITLE:

Town Centre Regeneration and Investment
Programme

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Kemp - Executive Councillor for
Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing

CONTACT OFFICER:

Sarah Porru – Head of Regeneration

WARDS INVOLVED:

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update Councillors on proposals for the Town
Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme and seek approval for the
submission of funding bids to support delivery.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Councillors:
2.1.1

Note the update on the Town Centre Regeneration and
Investment Programme

2.1.2

Recommend to the Executive that the Council submits bids to
the Heritage Lottery Fund and Highways England Designated
Fund to support regeneration and investment in Glossop.

2.1.3

Recommend to the Executive that the Council submits a bid to
the Future High Street Fund to support regeneration and
investment in Buxton.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

High Streets have been affected by major changes in the past decades, and
the speed of this change is increasing. Online shopping in particular has
become significantly more popular than it was 10 years ago and this is having
significant impact on retail stores. As a result, high streets are having to
evolve and adapt.

3.2

In response to these changes, The Ministry of Housing, Communities and
Local Government have made provision for a new £675 million Future High

Page 89

Streets Fund to support and fund local areas’ plans to make their high streets
and town centres fit for the future. The fund can also help to restore historic
high street properties and put historic buildings back into economic use.
3.3

Evidence shows that high streets with a wide choice alongside well designed
and planned residential and office space are more resilient to these changes
and are adapting more successfully. In contrast, high streets that rely heavily
on traditional retail without sufficient office space and housing surrounding the
high street have found it harder to adapt to these changes and tend to be the
ones that are struggling (Public Health England, British Property Foundation).

3.4

In response to this, a draft Town Centre Regeneration and Investment
Programme has been prepared for High Peak, identifying constraints and
opportunities and proactively driving growth in town centres. It also considers
funding opportunities including the recently announced Future High Streets
Fund, Heritage Lottery Fund and Highways England Designated Fund.

4.

Buxton

4.1

The current retail vacancy rate in Buxton is 11%, this is higher than the
national average of 10.1%. The majority of retail properties at Spring Gardens
are owned by companies based outside the area. This can mean owners are
slow to react to local issues and market changes and units remain vacant for
long periods of time. The existing retail offer is perceived as poor quality and
low value, and the high number of charity shops deters other investors and
detracts from the retail offer. There is also a higher level of national/multiple
stores in Buxton than in other High Peak towns which means it faces greater
risk from national trends in retail shrinkage.

4.2

The recent announcement that M&S propose to close the Buxton store could
potentially lead to a loss of confidence from other retailers and increase the
vacancy rate further. Across the wider town centre, way-marking and the wider
public realm is poor, making pedestrian access and connectivity difficulty.
Fairfield Road is poorly maintained and is not an attractive gateway to the
town.

4.3

However, the town has a strong profile in terms of its cultural and well being
offer. Over £106m of investment has been made in the town's built heritage
and the redeveloped Crescent will help invigorate the town. The development
of a new visitor economy strategy for the town will build on the success of
tourism which has seen visitor numbers increase by almost 5% to over 4.5
million since 2016 and tourism expenditure contributing over £250 million to
the local economy.

4.4

Buxton has also attracted significant new housing development and, through
the Council's Local Plan and Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme, 2,450
homes will be built bringing an additional £22.8 million household expenditure
into the town. Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Foundation Trust
and McCarthy & Stone are bringing forward proposals to redevelop land at the
former Buxton Water site, off Station Road in Buxton. The proposals would
see the development of a state-of-the-art facility for the NHS and other public-

Page 90

sector organisations, consolidating health and well being facilities into one
central health hub.
4.5

4.6

The Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme proposes to
capitalise on these developments and drive the health and wellbeing agenda
to maximise benefits across Buxton Town Centre. It is proposed to submit an
expression of interest to the Future High Streets Fund to deliver the following
elements:
 Delivery of the Visitor Economy Strategy
 Drive improvements to Fairfield Road
 Deliver improvements to the town centre public realm
 Promote health, wellbeing and cultural activity in Buxton and
surrounding environment.
 Promote the health and wellbeing agenda with partners including
Buxton Crescent, the University, Opera House and Buxton Health Hub
 Co-ordinate town centre activity and promotion
 Seek alternative uses for vacant high street properties
The Government has stated that they are expecting only one Future High
Street bid from each local authority and have made clear that they will not
accept bids covering town centre areas that are not facing significant
challenges. Having studied the criteria, and considered the challenges and
opportunities presented by each of the High Peak towns, Buxton, as the town
with the highest shop vacancy rate, is best placed to be the focus of a
submission and would benefit most from programme.

5.

Glossop

5.1

Glossop is the best performing of the major towns in terms of shop vacancies
(with only 3.5% of shops empty) and the amount of retail floor-space in the
town has actually increased in recent years. Its high levels of housing
development and connectivity to Manchester mean it has high levels of food
spend retention and, in turn, linked spending. The town has seen recent high
growth in the food and drink sector and is identified as having a strong cultural
and creative scene.

5.2

The Creative Industries Assessment (2017) identified Manchester as having
one of the strongest creative and digital economies in the UK and it is one
which is growing significantly. It noted that Glossop is well placed to benefit
from this through the development of high quality, low cost nurturing space for
creative business or cultural activity.

5.3

Vacant, council owned heritage buildings, including Municipal Buildings and
Glossop halls, provide an opportunity to encourage cultural growth and move
to a more balanced approach between shops, employment and housing.
Glossop’s Heritage assets are currently underutilised from the perspective of
the economic and social renewal of the town. They could provide the spaces
which would play a significant part in the attraction of new businesses, help
grow existing businesses and attract visitors which would help increase footfall
and support the high street.

Page 91

5.4

Whilst it is acknowledged that as Greater Manchester continues to grow,
Glossop will benefit, traffic congestion and the appearance of the A57 corridor
and gateway continue to be an issue. The Trans Pennine Upgrade and
proposed improvements to Mottram Moor and A57offers an opportunity to
address these problems. In addition, a submission for funding has been made
to the Derbyshire Business Rate Pooling Pilot scheme. If successful, this will
provide a local impact report and consider opportunities to maximise benefits
and mitigate and issues arising from the proposed scheme.

5.5

It is proposed to prepare an additional bid to Highways England Designated
Funds Programme to unlock local, strategic housing and economic growth
benefits, improving cycling facilities and green infrastructure and deliver
environmental and heritage improvements in parallel with the Trans Pennine
upgrade programme.

6.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

6.1

Development of the Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme
has the potential to help deliver the following aims of the Corporate Plan:
•
•
•

Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live
and work
Support economic development & regeneration
Protect and improve the environment

7.

Alternative Options

7.1

Option 1 (recommended) – that the Council notes the approach in the Town
Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme and approves the
submission of a funding bid to the Future High Street Fund to support
improvements to Buxton Town Centre and a submission to HLF and the
Highways England Designated Fund to support improvements to Glossop
Town Centre.

7.2

Option 2 (not recommended) – that the Council does not approve the
submission of funding bids to support improvements to Town Centres. This is
not recommended.

**INSERT NAME OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/HEAD OF SERVICE**
Executive Director (Place)
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details
Sarah
SarahPorru
Porru

https://www.gov.uk/g

Page 92

overnment/publicatio
ns/future-highstreets-fund

sarah.porru@highpeak.
sarah.porru@highpeak.
gov.uk
gov.uk

https://highwaysengl
and.co.uk/designated
-funds/our-funds/airquality-fund/

8.

Detail

8.1

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government have made
provision for a new £675 million Future High Streets Fund to support and fund
local areas’ plans to make their high streets and town centres fit for the future.
It will serve two purposes: it will support local areas to prepare long-term
strategies for their high streets and town centres, including funding a new High
Streets Taskforce to provide expertise and hands-on support to local areas.

8.2

The fund will also support the regeneration of heritage high streets (up to £55
million of the overall fund). This has two elements: helping to restore historic
high street properties through Historic England, and equipping communities
with their own resources to put historic buildings back into economic use - for
example as residential buildings, new work spaces or cultural venues,
supported by the Architectural Heritage Fund.

8.3

The FHSF will serve two purposes: it will support local areas to prepare longterm strategies for their high streets and town centres, including funding a new
High Streets Taskforce to provide expertise and hands-on support to local
areas. It will also then co-fund with local areas projects including:
 Investment in physical infrastructure, including improving public and
other transport access; improving flow and circulation within a town /
city centre; enabling provision of congestion-relieving infrastructure;
other investment in physical infrastructure needed to support new
housing and workspace development and existing local communities;.
 Investment in land assembly, including support for increase the density
of residential and workspace around high streets in place of underused retail units.

8.4

Local areas are asked to out how their plans will enable their local high street
to adapt to changes in consumer demands and then give details of individual
projects with a clear economic benefit. Funding can not be used to expand
traditional retail on their high street or for short term enhancements or
promotions.

Page 93

8.5

The Government has stated that they are expecting only one bid from each
local authority and have made clear that they will not accept bids covering
town centre areas that are not facing significant challenges. Places are
expected to partner with the private sector in developing their proposals. The
deadline for submission to the fund is 22nd March.

8.6

Highways England Designated Funds Programme is formed of five funds:

Air quality

Cycling, Safety & Integration

Innovation

Environment

Growth & Housing
These funds support projects which deliver environmental, social and
economic benefits to the people, communities and businesses who live and
work alongside strategic road networks.

8.7

Details of the HLF Fund are expected to be announced shortly.

Page 94

Agenda Item 8
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Economy and Growth Select Committee
7 February 2019

TITLE:

Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme soft market testing

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor - Tony Ashton Leader of the
Council

CONTACT OFFICER:

Joanne Brooks - Regeneration Officer

WARDS INVOLVED:

(All Wards);

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to seek Member’s approval to take forward the
marketing of council owned sites identified in the Accelerated Housing
Delivery Programme (AHDP), by soft market testing these using the
Homes England (HE) HCA procurement process.

2.

Recommendation
It is recommended that Members:

2.1

Approve that the council enter into an agreement with HE to soft market test a
number of council owned sites throughout the district as set out in 3.4 and 3.5
below.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Executive, at its meeting on the 26th April 2016, approved the
Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme (ADHP) as a mechanism for the
accelerated delivery of housing on council owned land. Many of these sites
are at very preliminary stages of development and may require more creative
solutions to deliver viable housing schemes.

3.2

Through working closely with Homes England, on a series of funding bids,
they have offered to work with the council to use the HE procurement
framework to soft market test a number of council owned sites.

3.3

The HE procurement framework offers a quick and efficient means to procure
high quality, good value development related technical services, such as
property and project management, engineering, planning and multidisciplinary
services. It offers a more streamlined and direct access to development

Page 95

services by using professionals that are already approved by the Homes
England HCA Framework. Using the HE procurement framework allows the
council to hand over the procurement of development services to HE to market
test the delivery mechanisms for a number of sites.
3.4

In discussion with Homes England, it is recommended that a number of
council sites be tested through an initial stage of soft market testing. This
would involve appointing a local agent (through the HE framework) to liaise
with local developers, house builders and registered providers. They will
assess local market trends, deliverability, market interest, land values and
potential joint venture or partnership working and recommend the best options
for accelerating viable housing development on the following sites:






Adderley Place, Glossop
Paradise Street, Hadfield
Melandra Rd, Gamesley
Padfield Main Road, Padfield
Granby Road B, Buxton

3.5

In addition to the above, HE can also offer, through their procurement
framework, to assist in disposing of council owned sites that are more
progressed. Using the HE framework the council can appoint a suitably
qualified professional to market and identify a preferred developer. It is
recommended that Market Street, Buxton be subject to this method of
disposal. This site is further progressed than those set out above. The delivery
mechanism for the site has already been established and an outline
application will be submitted for a decision soon.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Working with the HE framework and soft market testing a series of sites, will
accelerate housing delivery and therefore has the potential to deliver the
following aims of the Corporate Plan:




Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live
and work.
Support economic development & regeneration.
Protect and improve the environment.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

To not approve using the Homes England HCA procurement framework to soft
market testing council owned sites. The council owns a number of sites
allocated for housing. These sites may require a more imaginative mechanism
for delivery of viable housing development. By not investigating these through
soft market testing, the council will not be informed of the best delivery options
and as such, the sites are likely to stall and delivery be delayed. Therefore,
not taking action to develop them is not recommended.

5.2

To approve using the Homes England HCA procurement framework to soft
market test council own sites. By soft market testing the various sites the

Page 96

council can be informed of the best possible mechanisms to deliver viable
housing development on council land and accelerate development. By using
the HE framework the council will be gaining direct access to professionals
and developers who are currently working in the housing market and can best
advise on the viability and appetite for delivery mechanisms within the district.
Therefore, this option is recommended.
6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No implications

6.2

Workforce
This project requires co-ordinating expertise from various teams.
The following teams will contribute staff to the delivery of this
project:

Regeneration

Property

Planning applications

Finance

Legal
The regeneration team will co-ordinate the project with significant
input from property services.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
No implications at this stage.

6.4

Financial Considerations
A budget of £12,000 has been allocated from the existing
regeneration – housing delivery budget.

6.5

Legal
The HE frameworks have been procured through fully compliant
Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU). The use of the
Homes England Technical and Property Frameworks is fully
compliant to the Council Procurement Procedures Rules and to
the Public Contract Regulations 2015, the Council(s) are registered
and accepted as members to access the framework contracts
under this agreement for either direct award commissions or further
competition selective exercises.

6.6

Sustainability
The Local Plan and the Growth Strategy for High Peak are
prepared with wider sustainability considerations. Bespoke
delivery mechnisims for individual sites will accelerate housing
delivery, deliver Local Plan policies and key priorities of the Growth
Strategy.

Page 97

6.7

Consultation
Council officers in respect of procurement and property services
have been consulted on these proposals.

6.8

Risk Assessment
There is no significant risk identified and Council officers in respect
of procurement and property services have been consulted on
these proposals.
Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details
Joanne Brooks
Regeneration Officer
joanne.brooks@highpea
k.gov.uk

7.

Background Detail

7.1

The council’s Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme identifies a number of
council owned sites that are allocated for housing development within the High
Peak Adopted Local Plan 2016. The programme developed possible
masterplans, development appraisals and valuations for these sites.

7.2

In order to move this work forward, the council need to explore all possible
delivery mechanisms to accelerate housing delivery on the sites. Each site is
unique and there is not a ‘one fit’ solution for all. Sites have a range of different
constraints, opportunities, location and physical parameters that can affect the
viable delivery of housing.

7.3

By using the Homes England HCA framework the council can use a panel of
local agents, builders, registered providers and developers to review each site
and give viable scenarios for their individual delivery. This will assess local
market trends, deliverability, market interest, land values and potential joint
venture or partnership working.

7.4

By accelerating housing delivery on council owned land the council are taking
positive steps to continue to meet their identified housing need and contribute
towards the 5 year housing land supply (set out in the High Peak Local Plan).
In addition, housing construction in the borough will in turn, help secure
required affordable housing numbers and help deliver the economic benefits of
development.

7.5

The council has already secured £2m of funding through the Homes England
Housing Infrastructure Fund, which will unlock several allocated sites for
housing along the A6 (Buxton) and a further £476,000 for the accelerated
delivery of Granby Road B. Enabling the delivery of a further 675 units.

Page 98

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

ECONOMY AND GROWTH
Chairman: Councillor A McKeown
Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby
Lead Officer: Dai Larner
Date

Items

Contact Officer

Page 101

Statement of Community Involvement - public consultation
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Update
Future High Street Fund
Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme – soft market
testing
Work Programme

Jo Bagnall
Mark James
Sarah Porru
Jo Brookes

21-Mar-19

Trans Pennine Upgrade
Work Programme

Mark James

Jun-19

Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman
Work Programme

Jul-19

Work Programme

Sep-19

Work Programme

Nov-19

Work Programme

Agenda Item 9

7-Feb-19

Purpose/Method of
Consideration

ECONOMY AND GROWTH
To add in

Other infrastructure updates ?
Update/s on Peak Park Local Plan ?
Arrangements in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire to
create metro area
Hospital sites in Buxton ?
Fairfield Roundabout and Link Road – Housing
Infrastructure Fund (Part 2)

Mark James/Partners
to be invited to attend

Sarah Porru

Page 102

